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Foreword by the Board of Directors

Dear shareholders, clients, and business partners,

The board of directors of SAB Finance a.s. (“SABF" or the “Company”) is pleased to share with you information
on the Company’s successful performance in the financial year 2021.

The past year was certainly exceptional, as 2021 was the most successful year in the history of SABF. The main
event of the year was undoubtedly the entry of SAB Finance a.s. to the Prague Stock Exchange. The shares
began trading on 28 January 2021 on the standard market under the SABFG ticker. October brought a 1-for-10
stock split, which should simplify the entry for retail investors and offer them the possibility of attractive gains.
SAB Finance's shares also offered its investors exceptional value in the form of a half-year dividend of over CZK
68 million, representing a dividend of CZK 265 before tax per share. Relative to the normal market price, this
represents a 5% p.a. yield.

The Company continued its more than 15-year trend of profitability and delivered record trading results. The
Company'’s profit before tax exceeded CZK 200 million. Compared to 2020, this represents an increase by 39%,
surpassing both last year's record and management guidance. The Company managed not only to increase
profitability, but at the same time to work on further developing and meeting set goals and priorities.

Much of the credit for this went to the new currency forward product - a payment instrument for hedging
currency at a pre-agreed exchange rate on a predetermined date. High volatility in the FX market meant huge
demand for hedging against exchange rate risk. Transaction volumes increased by 183% year-on-year and the
number of clients using forwards increased by 46%.

Also worthy of note is the online currency exchange platform ProStream®, which has seen significant growth
over the past year. Compared to 2020, 15 times more clients opted to use online exchange, which accounted for
an increase in turnover of 1569%. This confirms the trend of shifting activities to the online environment. For
SAB Finance a.s., the platform represents a step into the future and another pillar alongside classic currency
exchange, with the personal approach that remains our main asset.

We would like to thank all our employees for their extraordinary commitment and great work throughout the
year. We would like to thank all our clients for their support and, above all, for the trust they have placed in us,

which we appreciate immensely.

In 2022, our priorities include supporting and assisting our clients in their businesses and on their journey to success.

The Company’s board of directors

In Prague, on 23 February 2022
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Proposal of the board of directors for settling the business
result for the previous financial year

The board of directors of SAB Finance a.s. proposes that profits after tax for 2021 of CZK 161,499,418
be distributed as follows:

CZK 120,000,000 CZK 41,499,418

for the benefit of
the shareholders

to the account of
retained profits

TULVLLLLL LAY
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Independent auditor’s report

TJan 2021 - 31 Dec 2021

KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.o.
Pobfezni 1a

186 00 Prague 8

Czech Republic

+420 222 123 111

www.kpmg.cz

This document is an unsigned English translation of the Czech auditor’s report.
Only the Czech version of the report is legally binding.

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Shareholders of SAB
Finance a.s.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of SAB Finance a.s. (“the
Company”), prepared in accordance with Czech accounting legislation, which comprise
the balance sheet as at 31 December 2021, and the income statement, the statement of
changes in equity and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes. Information about the Company is set out in Note A.1 to the financial
statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company as at31 December 2021, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Czech
accounting legislation.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors, Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council, and Auditing Standards of the
Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic, consisting of International Standards on
Auditing (ISAs), which may be supplemented and amended by relevant application
guidelines. Our responsibilities under those regulations are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Act on Auditors and the
Code of Ethics adopted by the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.0., a Czech limited liability company and a member firm Recorded in the Commercial Identification No. 49619187
of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG Register kept by the Municipal VAT No. CZ699001996
International Limited, a private English company limited by guarantee. Court in Prague, Section C, ID data box: 8h3gtra

Insert No. 24185
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matter How the audit matter was addressed

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most the Company.

significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters . )

were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in — We evaluated related disclosures in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. the financial statements for accuracy,
completeness and compliance with
the relevant requirements of the

Gains and losses from spot operations financial reporting standards.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, gains and losses from spot operations amounted
to CZK 299 668 thousand (year ended 31 December 2020: CZK 272 389 thousand).

Refer to note B.1. Transaction date and C.19. Gains and losses from spot operations in
the notes to the financial statement for further information.

Valuation of Forward + contracts

As at 31 December 2021, assets related to Forward + contracts amounted to CZK
51 373 thousand (as at 31 December 2020: CZK 0 thousand) and liabilities related to
Forward + contracts amounted to CZK - 50 816 thousand (as at December 2020: CZK

Key audit matter

The Company’s principal activity is
conclusion of transactions, consisting in
purchase and sale of financial assets
(foreign currency) at agreed foreign
exchange rates. The most common
transaction types are spot trades, i.e.
purchase and sale of currency assets on
a specified spot date.

In any given year, the Company
concludes a significant number of such
spot transactions, with different
combinations of currencies (currency
pairs), each trade requiring manual input
of underlying trade data into the
accounting system. The Company
initially accounts for the concluded deals
at the trade date to be subsequently
remeasured with actual foreign exchange
rate until the settlement date.

In addition, complex systems (trade
journals) are used to process and record
high volume of individually low-value
transactions. Due to that fact, the
existence, accuracy and completeness of
recognized trade-related gains and
losses is an inherent industry risk.

Due to the above complexities, coupled
with the magnitude of the amounts
involved, the area was associated with a
significant risk of material misstatement,
which required our increased attention in
the audit. As such, we determined it to be
a key audit matter.

How the audit matter was addressed

Assisted, where relevant, by our own
information technology specialists, we
performed, among others, the procedures
outlined below:

— We critically assessed the
Company’s accounting policies and
processes related to the recognition
of gains and losses from spot
transactions.

— We tested the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of
selected IT-based and manual
controls over trade input data entered
into the operating system, accuracy of
the calculation of gains and losses on
spot transactions, and transfer of data
between the operating and
accounting system.

— For a sample of spot transactions, we
obtained counterparty confirmations
of trade terms (trade date, settlement
date, currency pair, foreign exchange
rate, nominal amounts) and traced
them to the corresponding data in the
Company’s operating system (trade
journal).

— Using the above trade journal data,
we independently recalculated gain
and losses from spot operations and
subsequent foreign exchange
differences in the reporting period and
compared our outcome with that of

0 thousand).

Refer to note C.6. Other assets, C.10. Other liabilities and C.25. Fair value in the notes
to the financial statement for further information.

Key audit matter

As discussed in Note X, the Company's
product offering includes the “Forward +”
contracts, representing forward
exchange contracts that enable the
counterparty to gradually and partially
settle the foreign exchange transaction
within a predefined period of time. As at
31 December 2021, the Company had a
substantial number of unsettled Forward
+ transactions, in various currency pairs
and accounted for at fair value.

In accounting for the Forward +
transactions, the Company uses its in-
house model to determine fair value,
including that for both the forward and
option portion of the transaction, applying
a simulation of a number of scenarios of
the possible transaction settlement. The
key model assumptions and data include
those for yield curves, discountrates and
the expected date of transaction
settlement. Accordingly, the fair value
measurement involves significant
complexity, management judgment and
estimation uncertainty.

Due to the above factors, we determined
this area to be associated with a
significant risk of material misstatement,
which required our increased attention in
the audit. As such, we considered it to be

How the audit matter was addressed

Assisted, where relevant, by our own
financial instruments specialists, we
performed, among others, the procedures
outlined below:

— We critically assessed, against the
relevant requirements of the financial
reporting standards, the Company’s
processes, accounting policies, and
valuation methods (models) related to
determining the fair value of the
unsettled transactions with the
Forward + product.

— We tested the design and
implementation of selected controls
within ~ the valuation  process,
including those in respect of
management's review and approval
of the key parameters, data and
assumptions in the valuation model,
as well as the model outcome.

— We assessed the appropriateness of
the Company’s valuation model and,
for the entire population of Forward+
transaction unsettled at the reporting
date, we developed our own fair value
estimate for the forward portion of the
transaction, using independently
derived market yield curve, discount
rates and uniform distribution related
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Key audit matter How the audit matter was addressed

a key audit matter. to the settlement date. For the option
portion, we simulated settlement of
deals using assumption of random
motion for spot foreign exchange rate.

— We evaluated related disclosures in
the financial statements for accuracy,
completeness and compliance with
the relevant requirements of the
financial reporting standards.

Other Information

In accordance with Section 2(b) of the Act on Auditors, other information is defined as
information included in the annual report other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report. The statutory body is responsible for the other information.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. In
connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. In addition, we assess whether the other
information has been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations, in particular, whether the other information complies with laws and
regulations in terms of formal requirements and the procedure for preparing the other
information in the context of materiality, i.e. whether any non-compliance with those
requirements could influence judgments made on the basis of the other information.

Based on the procedures performed, to the extent we are able to assess it, we report

that:

¢ the other information describing matters that are also presented in the financial
statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the financial statements; and

» the other information has been prepared in accordance with applicable laws and
regulations.

In addition, our responsibility is to report, based on the knowledge and understanding of
the Company obtained in the audit, on whether the other information contains any
material misstatement. Based on the procedures we have performed on the other
information obtained, we have not identified any material misstatement.

10

Responsibilities of the Statutory Body, Supervisory Board and Audit Committee
for the Financial Statements

The statutory body is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Czech accounting legislation and for such internal control
as the statutory body determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the statutory body is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
statutory body either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Supervisory Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process. The Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with the above regulations will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the above regulations, we exercise professional

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the statutory body.

¢  Conclude on the appropriateness of the statutory body's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence

1



obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In compliance with Article 10(2) of Regulation (EU) No. 537/2014 of the European
Parliament and of the Council, we provide the following information in our independent
auditor's report, which is required in addition to the requirements of International
Standards on Auditing:

Appointment of Auditor and Period of Engagement

We were appointed as the auditors of the Company by the General Meeting of
Shareholders on 3 September 2021 and our uninterrupted engagement has lasted for
11 years.

Consistency with Additional Report to Audit Committee

We confirm that our audit opinion on the financial statements expressed herein is
consistent with the additional report to the Audit Committee of the Company, which we
issued on 15 February 2022 in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation (EU) No.
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council.

Provision of Non-audit Services

We declare that no prohibited services referred to in Article 5 of Regulation (EU)
No. 537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council were provided.

12

Statutory Auditor Responsible for the Engagement

Jindfich Vas$ina is the statutory auditor responsible for the audit of the financial
statements of SAB Finance a.s. as at 31 December 2021, based on which this
independent auditor’'s report has been prepared.

Prague
23 February 2022

Signed by Signed by

Jindfich Vasina
KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.o. Partner

Registration number 71 Registration number 2059

13



sab

Report of the supervisory board

The supervisory board operated during the accounting period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 (the
"Accounting Period”) and was made up of Chair Ing. Radomir Lapcik, LL.M. and Member Jana Jezkova.

The supervisory board carried out its activities in the Accounting Period in accordance with applicable legal
regulations and the articles of incorporation. The supervisory board met six times during the financial year.

The supervisory board carried out supervisory activities through which it was regularly informed about
the management of the Company and all material matters pertinent to the Company, including continuous
assessments of the possible impact of the pandemic on the Company’s operations, and regularly discussed the
conclusions of internal audit reports, including the monitoring of corrective actions on the findings of internal
audits, and the report on complaints and claims, and addressed, proposed, and implemented measures and
their effectiveness in the management system of the Company. The supervisory board was briefed in detail on
the Company's preparations for and entry into the Prague Stock Exchange in January 2021, as well as on the
further progress of trading in the Company’s shares.

Based on the information available to it, the supervisory board states that the efficiency and quality of the
Company’'s management and control system improved during the financial year. Furthermore, the supervisory
board notes that its cooperation with the board of directors, company management, and audit committee was
positive and that it had the statutory conditions necessary for the performance of its tasks.

When assessing the reports and information submitted, the supervisory board acted objectively and independently.

The supervisory board reviewed the financial statements and the board of directors’ proposal for the
distribution of profit for the financial year, including the audit report of the 2021 financial statements by the
auditor KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.o. The supervisory board finds the result of the audit satisfactory and
has no reservations.

The supervisory board recommends that the general meeting of shareholders approve these financial
statements, the annual report, and the proposal for distribution of profits as proposed by the board of directors.

The supervisory board notes that it did not identify any material weaknesses during its audit work during the

financial year in the audited areas that would result in the non-functionality of the management and control
system, either in whole or in part, or that would require the adoption of extraordinary corrective measures.

In Prague, on 23 February 2022 . /
7 a 7

Ing. Radomir Lapcik, LL.M.
Chair of the supervisory board

Report on Relations Between the Controlling and the Controlled
Entity and on Relations Between the Controlled Entities for the
Accounting Period from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021

The report on relations between the related parties has been prepared by the board of directors of
SAB Finance a.s. in compliance with Section 82 of Act No. 90/2012 Coll., on commercial companies and
cooperatives (Business Corporations Act), as amended.

SAB Financial Group a.s., with registered office in Prague 1, SenovaZzné nameésti 1375/19, Postal Code 110 00,
Company ID No.: 036 71 518.

As the controlling party, SAB Financial Group a.s. (the “Controlling Party”), owns

2 228 units of common shares at a registered value of CZK 388, which represents a total share of the voting
rights in SAB Finance a.s. of 86,5 %.

Mutual relations between the Controlling Party and SAB Finance a.s. were established on the following basis:
Contract for subscription of shares of 25 August 2020
Contract for voluntary overpayment of 10 November 2020
Contract for assignment of accounts receivable of 30 June 2020
Agreement to set off mutual receivables of 30 June 2020.

Agreements and contracts were executed under usual conditions and none of the parties referenced above
incurred any market advantage by virtue of this agreement.

The influence of the Controlling Party is exercised through decisions by the general meeting in matters
defined by applicable articles and law. The actual business activities of SAB Finance a.s. are independent of the
Controlling Party.

The parent company’s controlling party is Ing. Radomir Lapcik, LL.M.

No mutual relationships exist between Radomir Lapcik, LL.M. and SAB Finance a.s. apart from his membership
on the supervisory board of the company.

ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY THE SAME CONTROLLING ENTITY:

SAB Holding a.s., with registered office Prague 1, Senovazné nam. 1375/19, Postal Code 110 00, Company ID No..
036 68 118.

SAB Financial Group a.s. owns 1670 units of common registered shares with a nominal value of CZK 100,000,
representing a 100% share of voting rights in SAB Holding a.s.

Mutual relationships exist between SAB Holding a.s. and SAB Finance a.s. for the period in question based on
the following:

Payment Services Agreement dated 30 June 2016. The contract was executed under the usual conditions
and none of the parties referenced above incurred any market advantage by virtue of this agreement.
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SAB Financial Investments a.s., Senovazné namésti 1375/19, Nové Mésto, 110 00 Prague 1, Company ID No..
019 57 201.

SAB Finance a.s. owns six registered common share certificates with a nominal value of CZK 1,000,000 and
16 registered common share certificates with a nominal value of CZK 10,000,000 representing the sum total
of a 100% share in the voting rights of SAB Financial Investments a.s. The controlling entity is the controlling
entity of SAB Finance a.s. and therefore indirectly of SAB Financial Investments a.s.

A contract for a voluntary overpayment to equity was concluded on 8 Sep 2020 between SAB Financial
Investments a.s. and SAB Finance a.s..

SAB Europe Holding Ltd., SUITE 3, TOWER BUSINESS CENTRE, TOWER STREET, SWATAR, BIRKIRKARA 4013,
Malta, C70457.

SAB Finance a.s. owns 26 022 330 common registered shares with a nominal value of EUR 0.50, representing
a 100% share in the voting rights of SAB Europe Holding Ltd. The controlling entity is the controlling entity of
SAB Finance a.s. and therefore indirectly of SAB Europe Holding Ltd.

Mutual relationships exist between SAB Europe Holding Ltd. and SAB Finance a.s. for the period in question
based on the following:

Cooperation Agreement of 29 March 2018

Resolution on Capitalisation of Loan of 23 March 2020.

SAB Bohemia s.r.o., with registered office Senovazné namésti 1375/19, Nové Mésto, 110 00 Prague 1, Company
ID No.: 05132 363

SAB Finance a.s. is the owner of a 100% business share in the voting rights of SAB Bohemia s.r.o, which
corresponds to a 100% share in the voting rights of SAB Bohemia s.r.o; the controlling entity is the controlling
entity of SAB Finance a.s. and therefore indirectly of SAB Bohemia s.r.o,

Mutual relationships exist between SAB Bohemia s.r.o. and SAB Finance a.s. for the period in question based
on the following:

Payment Services Agreement of 28 June 2016 including subsequent amendments

Master Service Agreement for Leasing of Modes of Transportation of 17 April 2018.

FCM Bank Limited, SUITE 3, TOWER BUSINESS CENTRE, TOWER STREET, SWATAR, BIRKIRKARA 4013, Malta,
C50343

SAB Finance a.s. owns one common share with a nominal value of EUR 1and, indirectly via SAB Europe Holding
Limited, 28 484 999 common shares with a nominal value of EUR 1, thereby jointly representing a 99% share
in the voting rights of FCM Bank Limited. The controlling entity is the controlling entity of SAB Finance a.s. and
therefore indirectly of FCM Bank Limited.

Mutual relationships exist between FCM Bank Limited and SAB Finance a.s. for the period in question based
on the following:

Cooperation Agreement of 29 March 2018
Loan Agreement of 26 November 2021

Payment Services Agreement of 29 May 2018 including subsequent amendments.

mediaport solutions s.r.o0., with registered office Zlin, tfida Tomase Bati 2132, Postal Code 760 01; Company
ID No. 29192 790.

mediaport solutions s.r.o. is owned by SAB Holding a.s., which is owned by SAB Financial Group a.s.
Mutual relations between mediaport solutions s.r.o. and SAB Finance a.s. were established on the following basis:
Payment Services Agreement of 21 December 2011 including subsequent amendments

Agreement on the Provision of Software and IT Services of 14 December 2018 in the wording of the
following amendments.

SAB Corporate Finance Ltd., 30 St Mary Axe, Level 28/29, London, United Kingdom, EC3A 8BF

SAB Financial Group a.s. owns 211 common shares with a nominal value of GBP 10 000, representing a 100%
share of vaoting rights in SAB Corporate Finance Limited.

Mutual relationships exist between SAB Corporate Finance Ltd. and SAB Finance a.s. for the period in question
based on the following:

Payment Services Agreement of 25 April 2018 including subsequent amendments.

In the 2021 Accounting Period, no legal actions or measures were undertaken by SAB Finance a.s. in the interest
or on the account of the Controlling Party in the meaning of the provisions of Section 82 para. 2 item d) of the
Act on Commercial Corporations. SAB Finance a.s. did not incur any injury in association with the existence of
the Controlling Party in the 2021 Accounting Period, and for this reason no collateral was required for payment
of incomes nor were any contracts executed in relation to this payment.

In Prague, on 23 February 2022

Ing. Dana Hibnerova Ing. Petr Cumba
Member of the board of directors Member of the board of directors
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Other disclosures in the annual report

Information on environmental protection activities

As the Company provides financial services, its activities do not directly influence the environment.

Activities in labour law relationships

The Company acts in its labour law relationships in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations. It enables
its employees to continually increase their technical qualifications and language skills.

Research and development

The Company did not report any research and development activities in the Accounting Period.

Organisational unit abroad

The Company has no organisational unit abroad.

Acquisition of own shares

The Company did not acquire any of its own shares in 2021.

Financial Statements | 1Jan 2021 - 31 Dec 2021

Subsequent events

Apart from the events described in the notes to the financial statements, the management is not aware of any
other major subsequent events that would have an impact on the annual report as at 31 December 2021.

18 19
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BALANCE SHEET as at 31 December 2021

ASSETS (thousands CZK) mm 31 Dec 2020

1. Cash in hand and balances with central banks

3. Receivables from banks and credit unions C2. 374,536 260,716
of which: a) repayable on demand 225,376 208,226

b) other receivables 149,160 52,490

4, Receivables from non-bank subjects C3. 514,079 579,928
of which: a) repayable on demand 514,079 542,743

b) other receivables 0 37185

Ownership interests with controlling influence C4. 965114 965,114
Intangible fixed assets C5. 33,975 21,791

10. Tangible fixed assets C5. 6,658 5,451
1. Other assets C6. 260,253 132,165
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 1,458 2124

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

LIABILITIES (thousands CZK) mm 31 Dec 2020

Payables to banks and credit unions 228,712 85,296

b) other payables 228,712 85,296

2. Payables to non-bank subjects C9. 561,782 585,343
of which: a) repayable on demand 548,770 572,679

b) other payables 13,012 12,664

Other liabilities C10. 132,526 64,214
Deferred income and accrued expenses 1 96
Provisions cn. 17389 9,880

of which: b) provision for taxes 17389 9,880

8. Registered capital Ca13. 1,000,000 1,000,000
of which:  a) paid-up registered capital 1,000,000 1,000,000

9. Share premium C13. 6,356 6,356
10. Reserve funds and other funds from profit C13. 0 23,451
of which: a) mandatory reserves and risk funds 0 23,451

12. Capital funds CI13. 47477 76,000
14,  Retained profits or accumulated losses 395 0
Profit or loss for the accounting period 161,499 16,720

Total liabilities | 2156137 | 1967356

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

20
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OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (thousands CZK) mm 31Dec 2020

4. Receivables from fixed term transactions Cl4. 15,676,918 5,098,669
Oftbanceshectlabiies | | |

9. Commitments and guarantees received Cl4. 300,000 190,000

12.  Liabilities from fixed term transactions Cl4. 15,575,459 5,083,942

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1JANUARY 2021 TO 31 DECEMBER 2021

TR

1. Interest income and similar income Ca5. 3,044

2. Interest expense and similar expense C76. 4,573 9,835

3. Income from share and ownership interests 0 3,280

4. Fee and commission income Ca7. 2,075 2,049

5. Fee and commission expense C18. 13,985 14,038

6. Gain or loss from financial operations (@°) 371,664 296,161

7. Other operating income C.20. 88 767

8. Other operating costs C.20. 515 8,048

9.  Administrative expenses C.21. 147180 124,309

of which: a) employee expenses 14,227 89,660

of which: aa) wages and salaries 87,808 67,264

ab) social and health insurance 24,847 20,938

b) other administrative expenses 32,953 34,649

) Release of Io;s allowances arjd provision fpr receivables and 134 1229
guarantees, income from written-off receivables

13 Write-offs, additions and use of loss allowances and provisions 5 97

for receivables and guarantees

16. Release of other provisions 0 650

19. Current year profit (loss) from ordinary activities before tax 200,252 144127

Income tax C22. 38,753 27407

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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CHANGES IN EQUITY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
Registered | Share Capital Retained Profit thousands CZK mmm
Balance as at 1Jan 2020 716,717 6,356 19,768 73,663 816,504 T -_—

Transfers to funds 0 0 76,000 0 3,683 -3,683 76,000 Profit or loss during the Accounting Period from ordinary and 200,252 144127
Payment of dividends 0 0 0 0 0 -69,980 -69,980 extraordinary activities before tax ' '
Increases to registered 593983 0 0 0 0 0 583983 Non-cash transactions:
capital ' ' Depreciation and change in adjustments of non-current tangible s 7561 6726
Net profit/loss during 0 0 0 0 0  M6720 16720 ond ntangible assets
the Accounting Period ! ! Change in status of provisions cm. 0 -650
Balance as at 31Dec 2020 1,000,000 6,356 76,000 0 23,451 116,720 1,222,527 Addition and release of loss allowances C.24. -82 1132
Balance asat1Jan 2021 1,000,000 6,356 76,000 0 23,451 116,720 1,222,527 Net interest income Ca5. 4,416 6,791
Transfers to funds 0 0 0 0 5,836 -5,836 0 gi;?gséfsssfrom financial assets at fair value and foreign exchange C1o. 71,996 4,410
Egr;iiers to retained 0 0 0 40171 -29,287 -10,884 0 Profit/loss from non-current tangible and intangible assets C.20. -16 -84
Payment of dividends 0 0  -28523 -39,776 0 -100000  -168,299 Other adjustments -52 0
- 140,083 160,819
N Cectoﬁ’jr?tﬁi;/g'oggrfiggthe 0 0 0 0 0 161499 161,499 Changes in
Balance as at 31Dec 2021 1,000,000 6,356 417,477 395 0 161,499 1,215,727 Receivables from non-bank subjects c3. 57917 86,069
The notes form an integral part of these financial statements. Other assets, prepaid expenses, and accrued income Cé. 8,801 -44.914
Liabilities to banks and credit unions C8. 143,416 -116,525
Payables to non-bank subjects COo. -28,348 222119
Other liabilities, accrued expenses and deferred income C10. 15,743 40,767
337,612 347,705
Interest received CI15. 157 3,044
Profit shares received 3,280 0
Interest paid cae. -4,573 -9,835
Income tax paid c. -31,244 -18,357

Net operating cash flow -m 322,557

Acquisition of ownership interests -570,232
Acquisition of non-current tangible and intangible assets C5. -20,952 -13,988
Proceeds from the sale of non-current tangible and intangible assets 25,083

Net cash flow from investment activity -mm

ATl ) ERp et e e TR i : . hl.. T
| G I . A ! T gy
f "'mmmﬁ;. h d / ; [ B M —
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Income from increases to registered capital C13. 359,283
Profit shares paid C13. -168,299 -69,980
Repayment of lease liability -2,180 -1,951

Net cash flow from financial activity - -170,479 287,352

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents balance - 113,817 50,772

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January - 260,783 m
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December - 374,600 260,783

Cash and cash equivalents include: -_—

Cash in hand and deposits with central banks
Receivables from banks and credit unions due on demand 374,536 260,716

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December - 374,600 260,783

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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A. GENERAL INFORMATION

A.1. Description of the accounting entity

Name: SAB Finance a.s.
Registered office: Prague 1- Nové Mé&sto, Senovazné nam.1375/19, Postal Code 110 00
Legal form: Joint-stock company

Principal business activity: activities of a payment institution within the scope of the license granted by the
Czech National Bank in accordance with Act No. 284/2009 Coll., on Payment Systems

Date of company'’s establishment: 30 July 2010
Company ID No. [IC]: 24717 444
("SABF" or "the Company” or “the Accounting Entity”)

Since 27 April 2011, the Company has been performing activities of a payment institution within the scope of the
license granted by the Czech National Bank in accordance with Act No. 284/2009 Coll., on Payment Systems.
This was recorded in the Commercial Register on 15 February 2013.

As of 2 April 2014, another activity of the Company is the rental of real estate, residential, and commercial space.

Since 2 April 2014, the Company has complied with Act No. 90/2072 Coll, on Commercial Companies and
Cooperatives, in its entirety by proceeding in accordance with Section 777 para. 5 of the Act.

As of 28 January 2021, the Company’s shares are traded on the standard market of the Prague Stock Exchange.

A.2. Members of the board of directors and supervisory board as at 31 December 2021

Statutory authority — board of directors Ing. Petr Cumba Chairman of the Board

Statutory authority — board of directors Ing. Martin Farsky Member of board of directors

Statutory authority - board of directors Member of board of directors

Ing. Dana Hubnerova
Ing. Radomir Lapcik, LL.M.
Jana Jezkova
MVDr. Jan Cerny

Prof. Dr. Ing. Drahomira Pavelkova

Supervisory board Chair of supervisory board

Supervisory board Member of supervisory board

Audit committee Chair of audit committee

Audit committee Member of audit committee

Audit committee Member of audit committee

Ing. Blanka Kamenikova, Ph.D.

The Company is represented by the chair of the board of directors alone or jointly by two members of the board
of directors.

There were no changes in the composition of the board of directors and supervisory board in 2021.

The board of directors has three members who are appointed and dismissed by the supervisory board. The
members of the board of directors elect the chair from among their number, with a term of office of five years.
Each member of the board of directors has the right to one vote at a meeting of the board of directors, with the
chair's vote being decisive if the votes are deadlocked.
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The supervisory board has two members, who are appointed and dismissed by the general meeting. The
members of the supervisory board elect their chair from among their number, with a term of office of five years.
The supervisory board meets at least once a year. Each member of the supervisory board has one vote at their
meetings, with the chair’s vote being decisive if the votes are deadlocked.

The audit committee shall have three members who are appointed and dismissed by the general meeting from
among the members of the supervisory board or third parties. The audit committee shall elect its own chair
and vice-chair; the Chair being independent as defined by the relevant provisions of the Auditors Act. The term
of office of each member of the audit committee is five years. The audit committee is quorate when a majority
of all members are present. When reaching decisions, each member of the audit committee has one vote,
whereas audit committee decisions are carried by a majority of all its members. The vote of the chair of the
audit committee is not decisive if the votes are deadlocked.

Board of directors as at 31 Dec 2021

Ing. Petr Cumba

Apart from deciding on all matters of the Company not reserved by law or in the articles of incorporation to the
competence of the general meeting or the supervisory board, and acting for the company externally, Ing. Petr
Cumba does not have any other Company activities under his purview.

Date of birth: 02 Aug 1968
Date of appointment: 01 Mar 2015

Previous experience:

Mr Cumba is a graduate of the Brno University of Technology. In addition to the positions he has held in the
governing bodies of the Company over the last 5 years (listed below), between 1994 and 1997 he was the deputy
director of Union banka a.s., Hodonin, where he managed approximately 177 employees and was responsible for
managing the company’s business development. Between 1999 and 2001 he was a director of SPP Bohemia Trade
a.s., where he managed approximately 50 employees. In 2001-2010 he worked as CFO at MND a.s., where he was
responsible for all economic processes in the company and managed teams of 15-20 people. From 2004 to 2010,
he was also a member of the board of directors and chairman of the supervisory board of Moravské naftové doly
a.s. From 2013 to the present, in addition to the positions mentioned below, he has held the positions of director
of the economic section (in the period May 2013 to Jan 2015), and from 2015 to 2018 he was a member of the audit
committee (a position accredited by the CNB) at Moravsky Penézni Ustav - Savings Association (now TRINITY
BANK a.s). He is currently a member of the audit committee of TRINITY BANK. Petr Cumba has been a member of
the board of directors of Malta FCM Bank Limited since its acquisition by SAB Group at the end of 2017.

Current membership in the governing bodies of other organisations:

Chair of the board of directors of EcoSave technologies a.s.

Member of the statutory body of TRINITY Investorska a.s.

Member of the statutory body of Nadace Trinity Credo

Member of the statutory body of Optiware Net, s.r.o.

Registered agent of mediaport solution s.r.o.

Registered agent of SAB Bohemia s.r.o.

Member of the board of directors of SAB Europe Holding Ltd. (Malta)

Member of the board of directors of SAB Malta Ltd. (Malta)
Member of the board of directors of SAB Financial Investments a.s.
Member of the board of directors of FCM Bank Limited (Malta)
Member of the board of directors of SAB o.c.p., a.s. (Slovakia)

Former membership in governing bodies of other organisations in the past 5 years:

Vice Chair of the board of Narodnf Centrum Tkani a Bunék a.s.
Vice Chair of the board of Centrum bunécné terapie a diagnostiky a.s.
Registered agent of Cryo Storage s.r.o.

Registered agent of BioniX s.r.o.

Ing. Martin Farsky, FCCA

Apart from deciding on all matters of the Company not reserved by law or the articles of incorporation to
the competence of the general meeting or the supervisory board, and acting for the Company externally,
Ing. Martin Farsky, FCCA does not have any other Company activities under his purview.

Date of birth: 16 Nov 1978
Date of appointment: 28 Feb 2017

Previous experience:

Mr. Farsky is a graduate of the University of Economics in Bratislava. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants (bearing the title of FCCA). Between 2004 and 2016, he worked at the international auditing
firm Ernst & Young, where the positions he held included the position of senior audit manager specialising in
audits of large companies. From 2017 to 2018, he served as managing director of the Company, and from 2017 to
the present as a member of the board of directors. Since 2019, he has served as chair of the audit committee of
TRINITY BANK a.s. He has also served as a member of the board of directors of FCM Bank Ltd. from 2018 to the
present and serves as the vice-chair of the board of directors of SAB o.c.p, a.s.

Current membership in the governing bodies of other organisations:

Vice-chair of the board of SAB o.c.p., a.s. (Slovakia)

Member of the board of directors of FCM Bank Limited (Malta)

Member of the board of directors of SAB Corporate Finance Ltd (Great Britain)
Chair of the audit committee of TRINITY BANK a.s.

Former membership in governing bodies of other organisations in the past 5 years:

Apart from the above, Ing. Martin Farsky has not served in any other functions.

Ownership interest in other organisations:

Ing. Martin Farsky owns 10 units of stock in the Company but does not have any ownership interest in other
companies in the SAB Group.



sab

Ing. Dana Hiibnerova

Apart from deciding on all matters of the Company not reserved by law or the articles of incorporation to the
competence of the general meeting or the supervisory board, and acting for the Company externally, Ing. Dana
HUbnerova serves the Company as compliance officer on the basis of an employment contract.

Date of birth: 01 Feb 1955
Date of appointment: 14 Oct 2020

Previous experience:

Ms Hubnerova is a graduate of the University of Economics in Prague. After graduating from the University of
Economics (1978), she worked at the former State Bank of Czechoslovakia until 1989 in various positions in the credit
area. Between 1990 and 2004, she worked in the banking sector, including at (SOB a.s, where she held the position
of head of the economic and accounting department and later served as the economic deputy director of a regional
branch. From 2005, she worked as internal audit manager and later as compliance manager at Moravsky Penézni
Ustav - Savings Association (now TRINITY BANK a.s), where she is currently a compliance consultant. Since 2016, she
has worked in compliance consulting activities at SAB Finance a.s. She has been a member of the board of directors
of Sprava Aktiv a Bankovni Poradenstvi a.s. and SAB Financial Group a.s. and a member of the supervisory board of
SAB Holding a.s. since 2074. In 2017, she was appointed to the supervisory board of SAB o.c.p. and in the following year
to the supervisory board of SAB Financial Investments a.s. In 2019, she was appointed as a member of the board of
trustees of the Trinity Credo Foundation.

Current membership in the governing bodies of other organisations:

Chair of the supervisory board of SAB o.c.p, a.s. (Slovakia)

Member of the board of directors of SAB Financial Group as.
Member of the supervisory board of SAB Holding a.s.

Member of the supervisory board of SAB Financial Investments a.s.
Member of the Board of Trustees of the Trinity Credo Foundation

Former membership in governing bodies of other organisations in the past 5 years:

Member of the board of directors of Sprava Aktiv a Bankovni Poradenstvi as.

Ownership interest in other organisations:

Ing. Dana Hubnerova owns 10 units of shares in the Company, but does not have any ownership interest in other
companies in the SAB Group.

The members of the board of directors declare that:
no member of the board of directors has been convicted of a deliberate criminal offence in the past five years

no member of the board of directors has been subject to an official public charge or sanction by statutory or
regulatory authorities in the past five years

no member of the board of directors has been barred by a court from holding any office as a member of an
administrative, management, or supervisory body or from holding any office in the management or conduct
of the business of the Company or any other issuer of securities in the past five years

no member of the board of directors has been involved in bankruptcy proceedings, liquidation, or receivership
in the past five years as an individual or as a member of the Company’s statutory or supervisory body

they are not related to any other members of the company’s board of directors or members of the Company’s
supervisory board

they are not aware of any existing or impending conflict of interest related to the performance of their
duties as members of the board of directors.

Supervisory board as at 31 Dec 2021
Ing. Radomir Lapcik, LL. M.

Chairman of the supervisory board
Date of birth: 03 Jul 1969

Date of appointment: 04 Mar 2019

Previous experience:

A Zlin native and patriot, Mr. Lapcik is the founder and 100% owner of SAB Group with more than 26 years of
experience in the banking sector. He is an adherent of the Bata style of business — from drops in the sea, from
pennies to millions - i.e., achieving profitability step by step, taking care of clients every day. He is a supporter of
conservative and safe banking, of gradual and continuous development, resting on the continuous improvement
of services. He was awarded Entrepreneur of the Year of the Zlin Region in 2008.

His career has been strongly focused on the banking sector and financial services. He started doing business
in the financial sector in the Czech Republic 26 years ago, when he founded Moravsky PenéZni Ustav - Savings
Association in 1996, which he transformed into TRINITY BANK a.s. on 1 January 2019. At Moravsky Penézni
Ustav - Savings Association, he served as chairman of the board of directors and CEO.

At present, he is chairman of the supervisory board of SAB Finance a.s. and chairman of the supervisory board
of TRINITY BANK a.s., and has been approved by the Czech National Bank as a person suitable and professionally
qualified for these positions.

In 2017 and 2018, he was approved along with SAB Finance a.s. and SAB Europe Holding Ltd. by the European
Central Bank and the Malta Financial Services Authority, the National Bank of Slovakia, and the UK regulator
Financial Conduct Authority as a suitable and financially strong owner of regulated entities (bank, securities
dealer, and payment institution).

He studied Business Law at Nottingham Trent University (UK), where he obtained a Master of Laws degree.
Prior to that, he graduated from Brno University of Technology and completed his doctoral studies at Tomas
Bata University in ZIin.

In addition to conducting business, he is also a professor, having lectured at the University of Economics in
Prague and having introduced the subject of financial mathematics at Tomas Bata University.

He is also active as a philanthropist. His foundation CREDO CZ has been supporting families with disabled
children for some time. The NAVZDORY programme, to which he has donated CZK10 million, is currently working
to mitigate the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on socially vulnerable families in the Zlin Region.

Current membership in the governing bodies of other organisations:

Chair of the supervisory board TRINITY BANK a.s.

Chair and member of the board of trustees of CREDO CZ - charitable foundation
Chair of the board of trustees of Nadace Trinity Credo.

Ownership interest in other organisations:

SAB o.c.p, a.s. - 100 % share of registered capital and voting rights
SAB Financial Group a.s. - 100% share of registered capital and voting rights
immoSAB a.s. — 100 % share of registered capital and voting rights

CREDQ (Z - charitable foundation - 50 % share of fund capital.
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Jana Jezkova

Member of the supervisory board
Date of birth: 04 Jan 1959
Date of appointment: 11 Nov 2020

Previous experience:

Ms. Jezkova is a graduate of a secondary school of economics with leaving certificate; upon graduating from
the secondary school (1978) she worked until 1991 in various positions as an independent professional officer
at the Federal Ministry of Foreign Trade; from 1992 to 1994 she worked at SETRA Service Trading s.r.o. as
telecommunication equipment sales manager; from 1995 to 2013 she worked as director of sales and shopping
centre at OVUS a.s,; since 2014, she has worked as a manager at Sprava Aktiv a Bankovni Poradenstvi a.s., which
following a merger in 2021 became the successor company SAB CZ s.r.o.

Current membership in the governing bodies of other organisations:

Registered agent of SAB (Z s.r.o.

Registered agent of Domy Kvétnice Development s.r.o.

Member of the board of directors of OVUS as.

Member of the Homeowner’s Association at Makovského 1140-1145, Prague 6
Member of the supervisory board of SAB Financial Group a.s.

Chair of the board of directors of newstream agency a.s.

Ownership interest in other organisations:

Jana Jezkova does not have any ownership interests in any other companies.

The members of the supervisory board declare that:
- no member of the supervisory board has been convicted of a deliberate criminal offence in the past five years

- no member of the supervisory board has been subject to an official public charge or sanction by statutory
or regulatory authorities in the past five years

- no member of the supervisory board has been barred by a court from holding any office as a member of an
administrative, management, or supervisory body or from holding any office in the management or conduct
of the business of the Company or any other issuer of securities in the past five years

- nomemberofthe supervisory board has beeninvolved in bankruptcy proceedings, liquidation, or receivership
in the past five years as an individual or as a member of the Company'’s statutory or supervisory body

- theyare notrelated to any other members of the company’s supervisory board or members of the Company's
board of directors

- they are not aware of any existing or impending conflict of interest related to the performance of their
duties as members of the supervisory board.

The business addresses of members of the board of directors and supervisory board are the same as the
registered office of the Company.

A.3. Changes in the Commercial Register

In 2021, changes were made in the Commercial Register, namely the deletion of SAB Financial Group a.s,
Company ID No.: 036 71 518, as the sole shareholder pertaining to the entry of SABF on the standard market
of the Prague Stock Exchange in January 2021, and the registration of an updated version of the articles of
incorporation in the Collection of Deeds of the Commercial Register. The articles of incorporation were updated
to reflect the decision of the general meeting to split the shares at a ratio of one to ten, the abolition of the
reserve and other funds of the Company, and the deletion of two subjects of the Company’s business (previously
item b) “Production, trade, and services not included in Annexes 1to 3 of the Trade Licensing Act” and letter d)
“activities of accounting advisors, bookkeeping, tax recordkeeping”).

A.4. Information about Company securities

The Company’s common shares, ISIN: CZ0009009940; are issued pursuant to the Act on Commercial
Corporations and Act No. 89/2012 Coll,, the Civil Code, as book-entry registered securities. The shares have
a nominal value of CZK 388 (before the share split in October 2021, CZK 3,880). The shares are registered in the
central register of book-entry securities maintained by Centralnf depozitar cennych papirQ, a.s., Company ID No.
250 81 489, registered office Rybna 14, 110 05 Prague 1.

No special rights are attached to the shares. In particular, a shareholder has the right to a share in the company’s
profit (dividend) and the right to participate in the general meeting, to vote at the general meeting, to request
and receive explanations of matters concerning the company, to make proposals and counterproposals, to lodge
protests, or to exercise other shareholder rights under the articles of incorporation and applicable legislation.
Upon dissolution of the Company, a shareholder shall be entitled to a share of the liquidation balance. A detailed
description of the rights and obligations attached to the shares is contained in the Company’s articles of
incorporation available on the website www.justice.cz and in applicable legislation, in particular the Act on
Commercial Companies.

A.5. Decisions and authority of the general meeting

As the highest authority of the Company. the general meeting is quorate if shareholders holding shares with
a nominal value exceeding 30% of the registered capital are present. Voting at the general meeting takes place
through a show of hands. An electronic voting machine or other similar method may be used to record votes.
If all shareholders agree, the general meeting may be conducted without complying with the requirements
stipulated by law for convening a general meeting. Reaching decisions per rollam as described by Sections 418
to 420 of the Act on Commercial Corporations is not permitted.

The competence of the general meeting includes the decision to amend the articles of incorporation unless
such an amendment is due to an increase in the registered capital authorised by the board of directors or
a change resulting from other legal circumstances, the issuing of instructions to the board of directors or the
approval of the principles of the board of directors’ activities, and the decision to lease the company’s plant
or any of its parts comprising a separate organisational unit, the appointing or dismissing of a liquidator, the
approving of a contract for performance of a function and its remuneration pursuant to Section 61 of the Act on
Commercial Corporations, the appointing and dismissing of members of the supervisory board, the appointing
and dismissing of the audit committee and the approving of contracts for performance of the function of
a member of the audit committee, the approving of remuneration policy and remuneration reports pursuant to
the Act on Capital Markets, the approving of significant transactions pursuant to Section 121s et seq. of the Act
on Commercial Corporations, and decisions on any other matters entrusted to it by the articles of incorporation
or applicable legislation, in particular the Act on Commercial Corporations.
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A.6. Information on governance code and management of the Company

The Company did not implement a governance code or any other similar code in 2021, as the Company's activities
are governed by generally binding legislation, the articles of incorporation, and internal directives, which are
reqularly reviewed and updated accordingly. The Company considers this framework including the areas of
governance and management to be sufficient for its responsible and transparent operation.

A.7. Organisational structure as at 31 December 2021

BOARD OF

DIRECTORS
Supervisory Audit "::Egi]: I
board committee Division

Asset
Management

Bus!ness Compliance
Intelligence Division

- - Operations
Section

Trade Settle-

Sales
ment Division Support

and MO

Division

Informatics
Division

Information
Security
division

A.8. Entities with controlling and significant influence

Shareholders whose share in the registered capital exceeds 20%:

Shareholder’s first and last name Share of registered capital as at 31 December 2021

SAB Financial Group a.s. 86.48 %
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A.9. Ownership interests with controling influence

Business companies and cooperatives in which the accounting unit holds shares exceeding 20% share in their
registered capital:

Shareholder’s first and last name Share of registered capital as at 31 December 2021

SAB Europe Holding Ltd. 100 %
SAB Bohemia s.r.o. 100 %
SAB Financial Investments a.s. 100 %

A.10. Group structure

Ing. Radomir

Lapcik, LL.M.

100 %

SAB Financial
Group a.s.

Minority

shareholders

100 % 13,52 %

86,48 %

SAB
Corporate
Finance Ltd.

SAB SAB 100 %
Holding a.s. Finance a.s.

100 %

100 % 100 %

Mediaport SAB SAB Europe SAB Financial

Holding Ltd. Investments a.s.

Solutions s.r.o. Bohemia s.r.o.

99 %

1share

FCM Bank SAB

Limited Malta Ltd.

The registered office of the parent company
SAB Financial Group a.s. is at Senovazné namésti 1375/19, Nové Mésto, 110 00 Prague 1.
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A.11. Average number of employees, personnel expenses

A.11.1. Average recalculated number of employees in the Accounting Period

Average converted number of employees 60 66
of which:  members of the board of directors 3 3

members of the supervisory board

Personnel expenses for staff including the personnel expenses for executive staff are listed in section C.21.
Administrative costs.

A11.2. Remuneration to persons acting as statutory bodies, members of the statutory and supervisory bodies

In 2021, the accounting entity paid fees of CZK 420 thousand (2020: CZK 372 thousand) to members of statutory
bodies for the performance of their activities in these bodies based on individual contracts for the performance
of their functions - see Note 3.21.

No remuneration was paid to members of the supervisory board in 2020 or 2021.

of which:  managers 16,921 15,746
members of the board of directors 420 372
members of the supervisory board 0 0

A.12. Payments made to the benefit of related parties

The accounting unit does not provide any loans, credit, or other means of security, regardless of whether
pecuniary or non-pecuniary, to any parties who are a statutory body or are members of statutory or other
managing or supervisory bodies.

A.13. Basis for the preparation of the financial statements

The Company's bookkeeping has been administered and the financial statements prepared in accordance with
Act No. 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting, as amended, Decree 501/2002 Coll., which implements certain provisions
of Act No. 563/1991 Coll., on Accounting, for accounting entities who are financial institutions whose books
are managed using the double-entry bookkeeping system as amended, and the Czech financial standards for
financial institutions, as amended.

Decree No. 501/2002 Coll,, in the wording effective 1 January 2018, stipulates in Section 4a para. 1 that for
the purpose of reporting financial instruments, their valuation, and stating information about them in the
notes to the financial statements, the accounting entity should proceed in accordance with the international
accounting standards governed by directly applicable regulations of the European Union on the implementation
of international accounting standards (the “International Financial Reporting Standards” or “IFRS").
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As of 31 December 2021, the Company had no obligation to prepare consolidated financial statements according
to the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRS). Pursuant to the Accounting
Act, the Company has the option to elect to defer the obligation to prepare consolidated financial statements
according to the International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRS) starting from the
period of the fiscal year ending 31 December 2022. The Company has made such an election and will therefore
begin to apply International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (IFRS) from 1 January 2022
and will prepare consolidated financial statements in accordance with IFRS for 2022.

The financial statements assume that the accounting entity is a going concern and will not be in any way
restricted or prevented from continuing in those activities in the foreseeable future.

The financial statements have been prepared based on full accrual accounting and the transactions and other
events are recognised when they occur and are recorded in the period to which they relate. The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The accounting system respects the
prudential approach, assuming the going concern principle.

All amounts in these financial statements are shown in thousands of Czech crowns (CZK).
These financial statements are non-consolidated and have been prepared as at 31 December 2021.

The consolidated financial statements of the narrowest group of accounting units to which the Company as
a consolidated accounting unit belongs have been prepared by SAB Financial Group a.s. with registered office
at Senovazné nam. 1375/19, Prague 1. These consolidated financial statements are available at the registered
office of the consolidating entity.
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B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND MEASUREMENTS

B.1. Transaction date

Depending on the transaction type, the transaction date is generally defined as the date of payment or cash
collection, the date of purchase or sale of foreign currency, the date of executing a payment or collection from
a customer’s account, the date of ordering a correspondent to execute a payment, the date on which funds
are credited, as stated in a report received from the correspondent, the trade and settlement date for foreign
currency transactions.

For accounting transactions involving the purchase and sale of financial assets with a usual supply date (spot
transactions), the trade day accounting method was used. The purchase or sale of a financial asset is reported in
the balance sheet on the trade day, as is the liability or receivable associated with the payment for a financial asset.

The accounting entity derecognises a financial asset or its part from the balance sheet if it loses control over its
contractual rights to that asset or its part. The accounting entity loses that control if it applies rights to benefits
defined by a contract if those rights are revoked or if it waives those rights.

B.2. Tangible and intangible assets

Non-current tangible and intangible assets (“NTA" and “NIA") are reported at their acquisition cost. Amortisation
and depreciation are determined based on the acquisition costs and expected useful life of the asset. NTA and
NIA with acquisition costs of less than CZK 2 thousand are not recognised on the balance sheet but charged to
expenses in the year of acquisition.

Depreciation methods and periods according to asset grouping

Buildings straight-line 60
Inventory, instruments, and equipment straight-line 4-10
Software straight-line 3

Small assets worth over CZK 2 thousand straight-line 2-6

Land, unfinished non-current assets, works of art and collections are not depreciated. Leasehold improvements
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term or their estimated useful life.

Expected useful life is annually assessed and/or reviewed. Changes in depreciation periods, if any, are recognised
in the statements as changes in the estimate of the current year’s result.

The expenses incurred after the asset has been put into use, such as the repair and maintenance expenses, are
recorded in the period in which they have been incurred.

B.3. Ownership interests with controlling or significant influence

Ownership interests with controlling or significant influence are measured at cost net of adjustments relating
to a temporary decrease in the value of the ownership interests on an individual basis.

The establishment, release and utilisation of related adjustments is recognised in the profit and loss statement
under “Release of adjustments to ownership interests with controlling or significant influence” and “Losses
on transfer of ownership interests with controlling or significant influence, establishment and utilisation of
adjustments to ownership interests with controlling or significant influence”.

Ownership interests with controlling and significant influence are ownership interests in an entity in which
SABF is the majority shareholder, i.e.,, SABF has a controlling influence over the management and full control
over its activities. This influence arises from the share in the controlled entity’s registered capital or as stipulated
by a contract or articles, regardless of the percentage of the ownership share.

Ownership interests with significant influence are ownership interests in an entity in which SABF has at least
20% share in the entity's registered capital. In this case, SABF has a significant influence over the entity’s
management. This influence arises from the share in the registered capital or from the contract or articles,
irrespective of the percentage of the ownership share.

B.4. Financial assets and financial liabilities (financial instruments)

1. Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

SABF initially recognises selected financial assets and financial liabilities (e.g., receivables from clients, payables
to clients) at the moment they are created. All other financial instruments (including spot purchases and the
sale of securities) are recognised at the date the trade is agreed, which is the date when the accounting entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the relevant financial instrument.

2. Classification of financial assets

On initial recognition a financial asset is measured under the following classification categories:
amortised cost (AQ)
fair value though other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost (AC) if they meet the following conditions and does not also
qualify for measurement at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

The asset is held within a business model in which assets are managed to achieve a particular objective
by collecting contractual cash flows.

The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amounts outstanding (the SPPI test).

Financial assets are measured at fair value though other comprehensive income (FVOCI) only if they meet both
of the following conditions and do not also qualify for measurement at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

The asset is held within a business model in which assets are managed to achieve a particular objective
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,

The contractual terms of the financial asset on specified dates give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amounts outstanding (the SPPI test).

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
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Reclassification

Financial assets are not reclassified after initial recognition unless the accounting entity changes its business
model for the management of financial assets.

Financial liabilities

The accounting entity classifies its financial liabilities other than assurances and guarantees provided, measured
as follows:

amortised cost, or

fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

3. Derecognition
Financial assets
The accounting entity derecognises financial assets if:
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or

it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownerships of the financial asset are transferred or in which the entity neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset and it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between

the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognised) and

the sum of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in equity is reported on the
profit and loss statement.

Financial liabilities

The entity derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire.

4. Modification of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, the entity evaluates whether the cash flows of the modified
asset are substantially different.

If the cash flows are substantially different, then the contractual rights to cash flows from the original
financial asset are deemed to have expired. In this case, the original financial asset is derecognised and a
new financial asset is recognised at fair value.

If the cash flows of the modified asset at amortised cost are not substantially different, then the
modification does not result in derecognition of the financial asset. In this case, the entity recalculates the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises the amount arising from adjusting the gross
carrying amount as a modification gain or loss on the profit and loss statement. If such a modification is
carried out because of a borrower’s financial difficulties, then the gain or loss is presented on the profit
and loss statement together with the addition, release, or utilisation of loss allowances on the profit and

loss statement. In other cases, the gain or loss is presented on the profit and loss statement together with
interest income.

Financial liabilities

The accounting entity derecognises a financial liability if the conditions of the financial liability are modified and
the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised on the profit and loss statement.

5. Fair value measurement

Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date on the principal (or most advantageous) market to
which the accounting entity has access as at the given date. The fair value of a liability reflects the effect of
non-performance risk. Non-performance risk includes, but may not be limited to, an entity’s own credit risk.

The accounting entity measures fair value using the quoted price on the active market for the given instrument,
if available. The active market is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

When a guoted price is not available, an entity shall measure the fair value of the liability or equity instrument
using valuation technigques maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. The selected valuation technigue includes all factors that market participants would
include in the measurement of the given transaction.

The best proof of the fair value of a financial instrument upon initial recognition is the typical transaction price
(i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received).

If the accounting entity determines that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and
the fair value is neither based on the quoted price on the active market for an identical asset or liability noron a
valuation technique for which unobservable inputs are considered insignificant in relation to measurement, the
financial instrument is initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, the difference between initial fair value
and the transaction price is gradually deferred in the profit and loss statement for the life of the instrument.
This deferral is at most for the period for which the given measurement is fully supported by observable market
data or the transaction is terminated.

If an asset or liability measured at fair value has a bid price and ask price, the entity shall measure
assets and long positions at the bid price
and liabilities and short positions at the ask price.

The fair value of a financial liability with a demand feature (e.g., a demand deposit) is not less than the amount
payable on demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

Fair value hierarchy

The accounting entity determines fair value using the following fair value hierarchy, which reflects the significance
of inputs used for measurement.

Level 1: Level T inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., price) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).
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This level includes instruments measured using the following:
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are considered less than active
or other valuation methods in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from market data.

Level 3: Level 3inputs are unobservable inputs. This level includes all instruments for which valuation methods include
inputs that are not observable. The unobservable inputs have a significant impact on the valuation of the instrument.
This level includes instruments that are measured based on quoted price for similar instruments for which significant
unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required for them to reflect the differences between the instruments.

The entity considers transfers between the individual levels of the fair value hierarchy performed by the end of
the Accounting Period in which the given change occurred. For more details see Note 3.25, Fair value.

6. Impairment

The accounting entity reports expected credit loss (ECL) for the following financial instruments which were not
measured at fair value. Through profit or loss (FVPTL):

receivables from banks and credit unions
receivables from non-bank subjects

other receivables.

Determining expected credit loss

For more details, see Note C.241.

Credit impaired financial assets

For each reporting date, the accounting entity assesses whether financial assets measured at amortised cost
and financial debt securities measured at fair value though other comprehensive income (FVOCI) are credit
impaired. A financial asset is credit impaired if one or more events have occurred that have an unfavourable
impact on estimated future cash flows from the financial assets.

Evidence that credit impairment of a financial asset has occurred includes the following observable circumstances:
significant financial problems on the part of the debtor or issuer
breach of contract, e.g., default or past-due payment by the creditor
probability that debtor will enter bankruptcy, dissolution, or financial restructuring

closure of the active market for the security due to financial difficulties.

Presentation of ECL on balance sheet
ECL are presented in the following manner:
Financial assets measured at amortised cost as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Loss allowances and provisions established by debiting expenses are recognised in “Write-offs, addition, and
utilisation of loss allowances and provisions for receivables and guarantees.” This item also includes any subsequent
use of loss allowances.

The release of loss allowances for ECL no longer considered necessary is included in the profit and loss statement
under “Release of loss allowances and provisions for receivables and guarantees, income from written-off receivables”.

Write-offs

The write-off of unrecoverable receivables is recorded under “Write-offs, additions and use of adjustments
and provisions to receivables and guarantees” in the profit and loss statement. If a fully provisioned receivable
is written off, the loss allowance relating to the same item of the profit and loss statement is reduced by an
identical amount. Income from loans previously written off is included in the profit and loss statement under
“Release of loss allowances and provisions for receivables and guarantees, income from written-off receivables”.

B.5. Creation of provisions

A provision represents a probable cash outflow of uncertain timing or amount. A provision is created provided
that all the following criteria are met:

There is a (legal or constructive) obligation as the result of past events.

An outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation (probable, i.e., probability
exceeding 50%).

The amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provision for income taxes

As at the date of the financial statements, the corporate tax return had not yet been filed, thus provisions
for income taxes represent the positive difference between the calculated tax payable and the deposits paid.
Any negative difference is reported as part of the “Other assets” category.

B.6. Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for in the domestic currency converted at the exchange rate
declared by the Czech National Bank applicable as at the transaction date. Assets and liabilities in foreign
currency are converted to the domestic currency at the exchange rate announced by the Czech National Bank
applicable as at the balance sheet date.

The resulting profit or loss from the conversion of assets and liabilities in foreign currency is reported in the
profit and loss statement as “Profit or loss from financial operations”.

B.7. Leasing

Leasing from the lessee perspective

From 1Jan 2019 the company is applying the international accounting standard IFRS 16 Leasing. A contract is
considered a lease if it transfers the right to control the use of the identified asset for a certain time period in
exchange for consideration.

IFRS 16 brings changes in accounting and reporting for lessees. The accounting entity in the role of lessee reports
leased right-of-use assets and the associated lease liability on the balance sheet, with the exception where;

- the term of the lease is not greater than 12 months

- orthe underlying asset has a low purchase price.
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Right-of-use assets
A right-of-use assets is initially measured at cost, which includes:
- initial measurement of lease liability
- lease payments made from the beginning of or prior to this date after deducting all retained lease incentives
- initial direct costs
- estimated costs that the lessee expends for dismantling and removal of the leased asset.

The right-of-use asset is reported on the balance sheet in the item “Non-current tangible assets” and is
depreciated using the straight-line method for the period until the end of the economic life of the underlying
asset or until the end of the lease, depending on which period ends sooner. Relevant write-offs are reported
in the profit and loss statement in the item “Depreciation, creation and use of provisions and allowances for
non-current tangible and intangible assets”.

Lease liability

Alease liability is initially measured in the amount of the net present value of lease payments not paid as at the
date of initial presentation. Lease payments are discounted by the interest rate that the lessee would have to
pay if the funds for purchase of the underlying asset were borrowed, considering the conditions associated with
lease (i.e., lease/loan term, amount of the loan, etc.).

The lease liability is then remeasured if there is a change to future lease payments (e.g., due to change in the
evaluation of whether and when the extension or premature termination of the lease will occur, etc.). If the lease
liability is remeasured in this manner, this results in the modification of the valuation of the right-of-use asset.
If the right-of-use asset is null, the given remeasurement of the lease liability is recognised via the profit and
loss statement.

The lease liability is reported on the balance sheet in the line item “Other liabilities”.

Interest expenses originating from a lease liability are reported in the profit and loss statement in the field
"Interest expenses and similar costs” and differentiated using effective interest rate.

B.8. Taxation

Current tax

The income tax base is calculated from the profit or loss of the current period by adding non-deductible costs
and deducting revenues that are not subject to income tax, as well as by adjusting for tax rebates and any credit.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is based on all temporary differences between the book value and the tax value of assets and
liabilities using the expected tax rates applicable for the following period. A deferred tax receivable is only
accounted for if there is no doubt over its further application in subsequent accounting periods.

B.9. Interest income and interest expense

The interest income and interest expense are recognised in the profit and loss statement for the period to
which they relate. The interest on credits and deposits are deferred and accrued on daily basis.

B.10. Use of estimates

In preparing the non-consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Czech accounting regulations,
the Company’s management uses estimates and makes assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the amounts of assets, liabilities, income, and expenses recognised in the financial statements as
at the reporting date, contingent assets and liabilities, and expenses for the reporting period.

The management made the estimates and assumptions based on all relevant available information.

B.11. Derivatives

A derivative is a financial instrument that meets the following conditions:

- its fair value changes in dependence on a change to the interest rate, the price of a security, the price
of @ commodity, the exchange rate, price index, credit rating or index, or any other variable (i.e,, the
underlying asset)

- compared to other types of contracts in which a similar response to changes of market conditions is
based, it requires little to no initial investment

- it will be settled in the future, whereas the term of negotiating the trade until its settlement is longer
than for spot operations.

Derivatives are reported on the balance sheet at fair value. Positive fair values of derivatives are reported in assets
in the field “Other assets”. Negative fair values of derivatives are reported in liabilities in the field “Other liabilities”.

The fair value of financial derivatives is determined as the net present value of expected cash flows arising from
these transactions. Parameters determined on the active market are used to establish the net present value,
such as Forex rates, interest rates for the given maturities based on yield curves, etc.

Derivatives are reported off the balance sheet, carried at the undiscounted contractual value of the underlying
instrument in the items “Fixed-term receivables” and “Fixed-term payables”.

The Company also enters into forward contracts that are settled in tranches over time. The fair value of these
derivatives is determined as the sum of the option and forward components. The valuation of the forward
component is based on the classic valuation of a forward contract. To calculate the option component,
a simulation of the random path of the FX rate is performed for each day from the valuation date until the
maturity date of the derivative. The sum of the fair value of the two components comprises the total fair value
of the derivative, and this value is reported on the balance sheet, with positive fair values reported under ,Other
assets’, and negative fair values reported under ,Other liabilities”.

B.12. Changes in accounting methods

The accounting entity did not make any changes to its accounting methods in 2021 and 2020.

B.13. Effect of changes in accounting policies and corrections of material errors

Corrections to prior period expenses or income are recognised as current period expenses or income, apart
from corrections of material errors relating to prior periods.

Corrections of material errors in the recognition of prior period income or expenses and changes in accounting
policies are recognised under “Retained profits (or accumulated losses)” in the Company’s balance sheet.

No corrections to errors from previous periods were made in the accounting period ending 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020.
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C. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR THE BALANCE
SHEET AND PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT

C.1. Cash in hand and balances with central banks

Cash in hand 64 67

C.2. Receivables from banks and credit unions

Current accounts 225,592 260,880
Loss allowances (ECL pursuant to IFRS 9) -216 -164
Other receivables 149,160 52,490

Receivables from banks and credit unions reflect positive balances in bank accounts payable upon request.

Receivables from banks and credit unions as at 31 Dec 2021 include deposited customer funds of CZK 35,213
thousand (2020: CZK 31,082 thousand) to conclude spot transactions. The Company is limited in its ability to
dispose these receivables. This item also includes deposited funds on bank accounts of CZK 149,160 thousand
(2020: CZK 52,490 thousand), serving as collateral to hedge the risk of not settled forward transactions.

All receivables from banks as at 31 December 2021and 31 December 2020 are valued at amortised cost pursuant
to IFRS 9. Receivables from banks consist exclusively receivables of stable financial institutions. In terms of credit
risk, the company considers all of its receivables from banks as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 to
be of high quality. As part of calculating ECL, all receivables from banks were categorised as at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020 in Level 1. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, allowances were calculated on
the basis of the 12-month expected credit loss.

C Tkt | tewz | e | o |

12-month Expected Expected
expected credit loss credit loss

31 December 2021 credit loss for the term for | for the term for

(thousands CZK) financial assets | financial assets
that are not that are

credit impaired | credit-impaired

Receivables from banks
measured at amortised cost

Credit rating min. Baal 374,752 - - 374,752
Adjustments -216 - - -216

Net receivables from banks 374,536 374,536
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12-month Expected Expected
expected credit loss credit loss

31 December 2020 credit loss for the term for | for the term for

(thousands CZK) financial assets | financial assets
that are not that are

credit impaired | credit-impaired

Receivables from banks
measured at amortised cost

Credit rating min. BaaT 260,880 - - 260,880
Adjustments -164 - - -164

Net receivables from banks 260716 | - | 260,716

C.3. Receivables from non-bank subjects

Payable on demand 514,079 542,743
Other receivables: 0 37185
Sprava Aktiv a Bankovni Poradenstvi a.s. 0 34000
SAB Financial Investments a.s. 0 3280
Loss allowances 0 -95

Receivables from non-bank clients payable upon demand represent receivables from clients for unsettled
Forex trades.

Other receivables as at 31 Dec 2020 of CZK 37,280 thousand consisted of receivables from the sale of securities
of Sprava Aktiv a Bankovni Poradenstvi a.s. due in 2021 and a receivable from SAB Financial Investments a.s. for
the payment of dividends for 2019, which were paid as at 31 December 2021.

Analysis of other receivables by geographical region:

Czech Republic 0 37280
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Maximum exposure to credit risk (in gross amounts, not reduced by loss allowance):

2021 Balance | Off balance | Exposures Security Main type
(thousands CZK) sheet sheet tocreditrisk | provided | of security

Receivables from banks and credit unions 374,752 374,752
Receivables from non-bank subjects 514,079 514,079

T T N

2020 Balance | Off balance | Exposures Security Main type
(thousands CZK) sheet sheet tocreditrisk | provided | of security

Receivables from banks and credit unions 260,880 260,880
Receivables from non-bank subjects 580,023 580,023

T T N

As part of calculating ECL, all receivables from non-bank subjects were categorised as at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020 in Level 1. As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, allowances were calculated on the
basis of a 12-month expected credit loss.

31Dec 2021:

As at 31 Dec 2021, the Company did not report any receivables from non-banking entities categorised as
"Other receivables”.

For receivables due on demand, which represent receivables from clients from unsettled foreign exchange
trades, the Company does not add a loss allowance as the settling of trades with foreign currency always takes
place upon registration of the funds from the client to the account managed by the Company; the Company
thus is not subject to credit risk.

Tt | bz | tews | ww |

12-month Expected Expected
expected credit loss credit loss
31 December 2020 credit loss for the term for | for the term for
(thousands CZK) financial assets | financial assets
that are not that are

credit impaired | credit-impaired

Receivables from non-bank subjects
Other receivables 37,280 - - 37,280

Adjustments

Net receivable from non-bank subjects m—_ 37,185
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C.4. Ownership interests with controlling influence
As at 31 December 2021

Other . - N_ame,

. : " Sharein| Number |Acquisition ! registered
Name, registered office, Registered | component equity | ofshares e Carrying office, and

(%) (pcs) (%) et main scope
of business

and main scope of business capital* | of registe-
red capital*

SAB Europe Holding Ltd.
Suite 183, The Fort, Hard Rocks 187,091 422,687 100 26,022,330 100 650,114 650114
Business Park, Naxxar, Malta

SAB Bohemia s.r.o.
Senovazné nam. 1375/19 1,000 3,388 100 n/a 100 1,000 1,000
Prague 1,110 00

SAB Financial Investments a.s.
Senovazné namésti 1375/19, 166,000 151,449 100 22 100 314,000 314,000
Nové Mésto, 110 00 Prague 1

o laseo| smsae| ||| oesna sssme

* Unaudited balances, for foreign currency revalued at the exchange rate as at 31 Dec.

As at 31 December 2020

Other . o Name,

. . - Sharein| Number |Acquisition : registered
Name, registered office, Registered | component equity | ofshares e Carrying office, and

(%) (pcs) (%) St main scope
of business

and main scope of business capital* | of registe-
red capital*

SAB Europe Holding Ltd.
Suite 183, The Fort, Hard Rocks 187,091 463,518 100 26,022,330 100 650,114 650,114
Business Park, Naxxar, Malta

SAB Bohemia s.r.o.
Senovazné nam. 1375/19 1,000 -1,302 100 n/a 100 1,000 1,000
Prague 1,110 00

SAB Financial Investments a.s.
Senovazné namésti 1375/19, 166,000 148,868 100 22 100 314,000 314,000
Nové Mésto, 110 00 Prague 1

o [ aseoo | Gmome| | | | ossme| sesmu

* Unaudited balances, for foreign currency revalued at the exchange rate as at 31 Dec.

The subsidiary SAB Financial Investments a.s. owns a share in TRINITY BANK a.s.
In 2020, the equity of SAB Financial Investments a.s. was increased by CZK 148,000 thousand.

In 2020, the equity of SAB Europe Holding Ltd. was increased by EUR 2,800 thousand, EUR 5,100 thousand, and
CZK 212,877 thousand as the capitalisation of a loan.
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C.5. Non-current assets B) Tangible fixed assets

h ZK i i
A) Intangible fixed assets s €210 equipment paid
As at1Jan 2020 5,416 25,000 30,416
Acquisition cost Intangible Intangible assets |Advance payments . B
385 25,000 25,385

Losses
As at 1Jan 2020 15,376 6,481 22,357

As at 31 Dec 2020 5,304 - 5,304
Additions 5,958 1,801 0 7759

As at1Jan 2021 5,304 - 5,304
Decreases 0 0 0 0

Gains 1,803 - 1,803
As at 31 Dec 2020 21,334 8,282 500 30,116

Losses 385 - 385
As at1Jan 2021 21,334 8,282 500 30,116

As at 31 Dec 2021 6,722 - 6,722
Additions 23,507 1,895 0 25,402

Decreases 0 8,282 500 8,782,
Adjustments and allowances Machlnery and Advances
As at 31 Dec 2021 44,841 1,895 0 46,736 (thousands CZK) paid Total
As at1Jan 2020 2,529 2,529
Adjustments and allowances Intangible Intangible assets |Advance payments D iati d |
(thousands CZK) assets under construction provided o ngge(:g? dIeOCT aasr;e éccrua s 1,352 0 1,352

As at1Jan 2020 4,752 4,752 Losses 385 0 385
Depreciation and impairment As at 31 Dec 2020 3,496 0 3,496
of disposed assets 3,573 0 0 3,573

As at1Jan 2021 3,496 0 3,496
Decreases 0 0 0 0 5 o g |

epreciation and accruals

As at 31 Dec 2020 8,325 (] (] 8,325 of e 1102 0 1102
As at 1Jan 2021 8,325 0 0 8,325 Losses 385 0 385
Depreciation and impairment 4436 0 0 4436 As at 31 Dec 2021 4,213 (] 4,213

of disposed assets

o
o

Decreases 0 0
As at 31 Dec 2020 1,808 1,808

As at 31 Dec 2020 13,009 8,282 21,791
As at 31 Dec 2021 32,080 1,895 0 33,975 In 2020 the Company derecognised an advance payment for an acquisition of tangible assets that did not take place.

During 2021 and 2020 the Company created software that aids in the streamlining and automation of the
Company's activities through its own activities and in collaboration with mediaport solutions s.r.o.

Decreases in the line items “Unfinished non-current intangible assets” and “Advance payments provided”
consist of commissioning assets into use.
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C.5.2. Tangible fixed assets acquired as part of leasing C.6. Other assets
Receivables owed by various debtors 2,380 2,467
As at 1Jan 2020 4,623 4,623
, Advances provided 57549 65,751
Gains 2,073 2,073
Other assets 129 14
Losses 0 0
Positive fair value of currency forwards 200,619 64,397
As at 31 Dec 2020 6,696 6,696
Adjustments -424 -464
As at 31Jan 2021 6,696 6,696
| o | o008 | raes
Gains 2,527 2,527
Losses 0 0
As at 31Jan 2021 9,223 9,223 The major items of advances paid are security deposits for the purchase of cars of CZK 24,600 thousand (2020:

CZK 27132 thousand), advances for IT services of (ZK 12,890 thousand (2020: CZK 18,351 thousand), a retainer paid to

] - a law office of CZK 20,000 thousand (2020: CZK 20,000 thousand) for legal services consisting of seeking a suitable
aﬂj:::;':_.%';tézal'(';l allowances ang:églggtsa te acquisition target abroad.

The line item of positive fair value of currency forwards also includes a risk component valued as at 31 Dec 2021 at CZK

As at 1Jan 2020 1,230 1,230
9,500 thousand.
Depreciation and accruals of discarded assets 1,823 1,823
Losses 0 0 ! .
All other assets as at 31 December 2021 are measured at amortised cost pursuant to IFRS 9. As part of calculating ECL,
As at 31 Dec 2020 3,053 3,053 all other assets were categorised as at 31 December 2021and 31 December 2020 in Level 1. As at 31 December 2021 and
As at1Jan 2021 3,053 3,053 31 December 2020 allowances were calculated on the basis of a 172-month expected credit loss.
Depreciation and accruals of discarded assets 2,021 2,021
As at 31 Dec 2021 5,074 5,074 12-month Expected Expected
expected credit loss credit loss
31 December 2021 credit loss for the term for | for the term for
Residual value of tangible assets acquired Buildings financial assets | financial assets
As at 31 December 2020 3,643 3,643 BB || creditimpaired
As at 31 December 2021 4,149 4,149 Other assets 60,048 - - 60,048

Adjustments -424 - - -424
Other assets net 59,624 59,624

I T T R T T

Residual value of tangible assets 12-month Expected Expected
(thousands CZK) expected credit loss credit loss

The accounting entity leases real estate and buildings to house its headquarters and customer service centres.
These leases are typically executed for an indefinite term with a one-year notice period for cancellation.

31 December 2020 credit loss for the term for | for the term for
GslgtBlNecembeEn2020 2L (thousands CZK) financial assets | financial assets
As at 31 December 2021 6,658 that are not that are
credit impaired | credit-impaired
Other assets 68,231 - - 68,231
Adjustments -464 - - -464
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C.7. Prepaid expenses and accrued income

As at 31 December 2021, the Company reported costs from upcoming periods of CZK 1,458 thousand (2020:
CZK 2124 thousand). Costs from upcoming periods are composed predominantly of accruals and deferrals of
consulting and advisory services.

No assets of the Company were used as collateral for the obligations of the Company.

C.8. Liabilities to banks and credit unions

Balance 31 Dec 2021 | Balance 31 Dec 2020
Liabilities due on demand M (thousands CZK) (thousands CZK)

FCM Bank Limited 30 November 2022 228,712 85,296

C.9. Payables to non-bank subjects

Due on demand 548,770 572,679
Other liabilities 13,012 12,664
Total 561,782 585,343

Payables to clients payable upon demand primarily represent payables to clients for unsettled spot trades.
None of these payables is overdue.

Other payables as at 31 Dec 2021 consist primarily of collateral accepted as part of forward trades in the amount
of CZK 12,892 thousand (2020: CZK 12,625 thousand).

The Bank also reports receivables from non-bank subjects representing receivables from clients from unsettled
spot trades. The net value of payables and receivables due on demand as at 31 Dec 2021 is a payable of CZK 1,646
thousand (2020: payables CZK 15,591 thousand). Receivables are described in part C.3.

C.10. Other liabilities

Payables to employees 10,034 3,412
Liabilities from social security and health insurance 3,450 1,717
Tax liabilities 2,414 860
Deferred tax liability 18 66
Estimated accounts payable 3,338 2,057
Liabilities from leasing 4151 3,644
Other liabilities 5,905 3,896
Negative fair value of currency forwards 103,216 48,562

54

Annual Report | 1Jan 2021 - 31 Dec 2021

In the accounting periods of 2021 and 2020, no liabilities had a maturity exceeding 5 years.

Lease liabilities as at 31 December 2021 of CZK 4,151 thousand (2020: CZK 3,644 thousand) represent lease
liabilities according to IFRS 16. The undiscounted value of these lease liabilities as at 31 December 2021 was CZK
6,659 thousand (of which CZK 2,220 thousand were due within Tyear and the remainder by December 2023 and
April 2024, respectively).

C.11. Provisions

Income tax provisions

In 2021, the Company established provisions totalling CZK 39,101 thousand (in 2020 totalling CZK 27120 thousand)
and released a total tax provision of CZK 27120 thousand (in 2020 totalling CZK 16,332 thousand).

In the financial statements, the income tax provision is reported as net. As advance payments of tax of CZK
27,712 thousand (2020: CZK 17,240 thousand) were lower than the provision itself, the Company recognised a tax
provision of CZK 17,389 thousand (2020: CZK 9,880 thousand).

for income taxes

Balance as at 1Jan 2020 16,332
Additions during the year 27120
Release -16,332
Balance as at 31 Dec 2020 27120
Additions during the year 39,101
Release -27120
Balance as at 31 Dec 2021 39,101
C.12. Deferred tax

Items with temporary differences
(thousands CZK)

Non-current assets (deferred tax Ilab|l|ty

Deferred income tax is calculated from all the temporary differences using the tax rate applicable for the
period in which the tax payable or receivable will be applied, i.e., 19%.
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C.13. Equity

The registered capital of the Company consists of 2,577,320 units (2020: 257732 units) of registered common
stock in documentary form with a nominal value of CZK 388 (2020: CZK 3,880). Effective 1 Oct 2021, shares of
SAB Finance a.s. were split at a ratio of 1to 10.

Decision to proceed with New number of Share value Registered in the
stock split effective as at shares Commercial Register on

10ct 2021 2,577,320 units 1/10 CZK 388 14 September 2021

Information about securities

Type Common stock
Form Registered
Format Book-entry
Number of units 2,577320

Number of units owned by persons

with managing authority 20
Volume Qf offereq shares of SAB Finance a.s. placed 348362
and sold in a public offer as at 31 Dec 2021 '

ISIN (CzZ0009009940
Nominal value 388

Income from securities is taxed according to Act No.

Taxation of shares 586/1992 Coll., on Income Taxes, as amended

Payer of taxes withheld from the yields of the security Issuer
Methods of transfer of the security Via CDCP

There are no restrictions on the transferability

Restrictions on transferability of shares

The Company is not aware of any restrictions on the

Restrictions on voting rights voting rights of the shares issued by the Company.

5% p.a. of the market price of the shares

Dividend strategy at admission to trading

Dividend payment Semi-annually
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Significant direct or indirect voting interests in the Company

See Note 110.

Information about contracts between shareholders or similar owners of securities representing an interest in
the Company that may result in encumbering the transferability of shares or similar securities representing
an interest in the Company, if known to the Company

The Company is not aware of any contracts between shareholders that would have the effect of encumbering
the transferability of shares issued by the Company.

Information on special rules governing the election and removal of members of a statutory body and the
amendment of the articles of incorporation or similar documents of the Company

The Company has not adopted any special rules governing the election and removal of members of a statutory
body and the amendment of the articles of incorporation or any similar documents of the Company.

Information on special powers of a statutory body or the board of directors under laws regulating the legal
relations of companies and cooperatives

The statutory body of the Company does not have any special powers under the law regulating the legal
relations of companies and cooperatives.

Information on significant agreements to which the Company is a party and which will take effect, be
amended, or terminate in the event of a change of control of the Company as a result of a takeover bid, and
the effects thereof

The Company is not aware of any such agreements.

Information on contracts between the Company and members of its statutory body or employees which the
Company is obliged to perform in the event of the termination of their function or employment in connection
with a takeover bid

The Company has not entered into any agreements with members of its statutory body or employees which
contain provisions for performance by the Company should their function be terminated in connection with
a takeover bid.

Information on any plans under which employees and members of the statutory body of the Company are
permitted to acquire participating securities of the Company, options to such securities, or other rights to such
securities under advantageous conditions, and on the method by which rights under such securities are exercised

The Company does not have any plans under which employees and members of the statutory body are allowed
to acquire participating securities, options to such securities, or other rights under advantageous conditions.
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Profit distribution

The board of directors of SAB Finance a.s. proposes to distribute the profit after tax for 2021 of CZK 161,499,418
as follows:

1) CZK 120,000,000 to the benefit of shareholders
2) CZK 41,499,418 to the account of retained profits.

On 3 September 2021, the general meeting of Shareholders of SAB Finance a.s. resolved to distribute the
Company’s own funds of CZK 68,298,980 to its shareholders. The interim dividend as calculated per share
(before the split) amounted to CZK 265 before tax.

On 16 April 2021, the general meeting of SAB Finance a.s. decided on the proposed distribution of the company'’s
profit for 2020. CZK 5,836 thousand was transferred to the reserve fund account, while CZK 10,884 thousand
was transferred to the retained profits account. CZK 100,000 thousand was paid to the sole shareholder in the
form of dividends.

The dividend policy of the Company that has been applied and performed over the long term has been to
disburse to shareholders all profits after deductions to statutory funds. The planned dividend strategy is to pay
a dividend twice a year, corresponding to at least 5% per annum of the price of the shares at the time of the
public offering, i.e, CZK 1,060 per share.

C.14. Off-balance sheet items

Nominal and fair value of fixed term operations

31 December 2021:

Foreign exchange derivative transactions as at 31 December 2021

(thousands CZK) Off balance sheet
Receivables from fixed term operations 15,676,918

Liabilities from fixed term operations 15,575,459

Foreign exchange derivative transactions as at 31 December 2021 “
(thousands CZK)

Positive fair value 200,619

Negative fair value 103,216

Positive fair value represents the positive fair value of derivatives of CZK 210,119 thousand reduced by CVA
(credit value adjustment, a measure of counterparty credit risk) of CZK 9,500 thousand.

31 December 2020:

Foreign exchange derivative transactions as at 31 December 2020
(thousands CZK) Off balance sheet

Receivables from fixed term operations 5,098,669

Liabilities from fixed term operations 5,083,942
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Foreign exchange derivative transactions as at 31 December 2020
(thousands CZK)

Positive fair value 64,397
Negative fair value 48,562

The positive fair value of foreign exchange derivative transactions is reported in other assets; the negative fair
value of foreign exchange derivative transactions is reported in other liabilities.

Residual maturity of fixed term operations

The table below contains the division of nominal values of the individual types of financial derivatives according
to their residual maturities.

as at 31 Dec 2021 From 3 months| More than1 Total
(thousands CZK) to1year Year

Foreign exchange derivative transactions

. 3,331,170 7,728,158 4,617,590 15,676,918
(receivables)
FOTEIEN GEENCECEMENRUENEES | gepames | g4 4572106 15575459
(liabilities)
as at 31 Dec 2020 From 3 months| More than1 Total
(thousands CZK) to1year Year
Fore|gn exchange derivative transactions 1931734 2616407 550 5783 5,098,669
(receivables)
Foreign exchange derivative transactions 1928,89 2603905 551143 5,086,603

(liabilities)

Assurances and guarantees received

As at 31 December 2021, the Company records assurances and guarantees received of CZK 300,000 thousand
(as at 31 December 2020, CZK 190,000 thousand). This consists of credit not drawn down based on a loan
agreement with TRINITY BANK a.s.

C.15. Interest income and similarincome

Interest on loans provided 157 3,044
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C.16. Interest expenses and similar expense

Interest on overdraft bank accounts 310 14
Interest on loans 4,003 9,821
Other 260 0

Interest from loans mainly consists of interest expense on loans received from FCM Bank Limited.

C.17. Fee and commission income

(thousands CZK) 2021 2020

Fees on executed transactions 2,075 2,049

C.18. Fee and commission expense

Bank fees 13,985 14,038

Commission and fee expenses consist of bank fees for overdraft accounts with TRINITY BANK a.s. and
fees for current credits at other banks.

C.19. Gain or loss from financial operations

Exchange rate profit/loss from revaluation of balance sheet accounts -9,572 14,562
Profit/loss from trading 299,668 272,389
Revaluation of financial derivatives 81,568 9,210

Profits from financial operations were divided into an amount representing exchange rate differences from
the revaluation of the balances of balance accounts and profits from business that represents exchange rate
differences between the exchange rate arranged at the time of settling the trade and the Czech National Bank’s
exchange rate, and the revaluation of derivative trades.
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C.20. Other operating income and other operating costs

Other operating income

Revenues from sale of non-current assets 16 83
Insurance premiums 0 41
Other revenues 72 643

Revenues from the sale of non-current assets predominantly consist of revenues from the sale of disposed
assets (especially IT technology).

Other operating costs

(thousands CZK) 2021 2020
Gifts 20 7,000
Residual value of sold assets 0 21
Insurance 459 422
Other costs 36 605

C.21. Administrative expenses

Wages and remuneration for employees 87,808 67,264
of which:  managers 16,921 15,746
board members 420 372
members of the supervisory board 0 0
Social security and health insurance 24,847 20,938
of which:  managers 3,675 4,003
board members 116 114
members of the supervisory board 0] 0
Other employee costs 1,572 1,458
Other administrative costs 32,953 34,649
of which: audit costs, legal and tax consulting 7169 4,872
of which:  compensation to statutory auditor 862 645
mandatory audit 157 157
tax consultation 90 0

* Services provided to the Company by KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.o. and KPMG Ceska republika, s.r.o. are
inclusive of VAT.
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As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Company had not granted any loan, advance, pledge or
credit to members of its managing or supervisory bodies.

Persons with managing authority
Remuneration principles

The Company operates in accordance with generally binding legislation when remunerating employees and
employees with managing authority, particularly with Act No. 262/2006 Coll., the Labour Code, and Act No.
90/2012 Coll,, the Act on Commercial Corporations. In addition to the above, remuneration is subject to internal
regulations. In particular, the remuneration principles aim to ensure transparency, predictability, compliance
with legal requirements, and fair treatment of all employees.

Basic remuneration for performance of functions is payable to the members of a statutory body based on a Contract
for Performance of Function concluded with the Company. Members of the board of directors are remunerated for the
performance of their functions in accordance with the applicable provisions of the Act on Commercial Corporations
and the Labour Code. The above remuneration has the character of a fixed monthly salary.

Atthe sametime, the Contract for the Performance of a Function requires that the issuer reimburse the member
for all reasonable expenses actually incurred in the performance of obligations arising from the performance
of their functions. The extent of the reimbursement of expenses and other conditions are governed by internal
regulations and applicable legislation governing employee compensation. Such reimbursements include, e.qg.,
travel expenses, travel insurance, etc.

To perform their functions, the Company shall provide members of the board of directors who are not also
employees of the Company and do not already have such resources at their disposal by virtue of their position
with working equipment at its own expense as needed for the performance of their duties. The resources
needed for the performance of their function include, e.g.,, company vehicle, laptop computer, mobile phone,
SIM card, calling and data plans, etc.

Finally, the Company undertakes to reimburse board members for the costs of educational or other activities
related to the performance of the functions of a board member and the business management of the Company.
The purpose of these costs is to enhance the professional knowledge and skills of such managing personnel.

No monetary or non-monetary compensation shall be due to a member of a statutory body upon termination
of their function. The only exception is where a member of the board of directors is also an employee of the
Company and therefore entitled to remuneration by virtue of this employment relationship.

The Company has no other persons with management authority apart from members of the board of directors.

The supervisory board of the Company does not have aremuneration arrangementarising from the performance
of its function.

No material contracts have been concluded during the financial years 2021 and 2020 other than the contracts
to which the Company is a party concluded in the ordinary course of business.
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C.22. Income tax

Income tax payable for current Accounting Period 39,101 27120
Adjustments to tax of previous years -300 273
Income tax deferred -48 14

Income tax reported on the profit and loss statement 38,753 27,407

Income tax has been determined as the accounting profit less tax deductible and tax non-deductible expenses
and income.

C.23. Transakce se spriznénymi osobami

Receivables as at 31 Dec Payables as at 31 Dec
(thousands CZK)
2021 2020 2021 2020

SAB (Zsro. 0 34,000 0 0
SAB Bohemia s.r.o. 24,609 27147 295 621
mediaport solutions s.r.o. 15,066 21,026 1,022 1,943
FCM Bank Limited 2,037 135 228,712 85,296
SAB Financial Investments a.s. 0 3,280 0 0
TRINITY BANK a.s. 70,971 74,551

Receivables primarily consist of receivables from loans and interest provided, advance payments provided, and
bank balances. Liabilities consist primarily of payables from borrowed funds and bank loans.

0 967 0 0

SAB (Z sro.

SAB Corporate Finance Ltd. 0 91 0 0
SAB Financial Group a.s. 341 21 495 198
SAB Bohemia s.ro. 0 0 3352 5,061
SAB Financial Investments a.s. 0 3,280 0 0
mediaport solutions s.r.o. 72 0 7767 10,533
FCM Bank Limited 0 0 3127 2,668
SAB Europe Holding 0 1,451 0 0
SAB Holding a.s. 0 600 0 0
TRINITY BANK a.s. 1,009 12 824 13,231
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These costs consist mainly of car leases from SAB Bohemia s.r.o., IT services from mediaport solutions s.r.o., and
interest on credit received and bank fees from TRINITY BANK a.s. and FCM Bank Limited.

C.24. Financial instruments - risk management

An overview of the primary risks that may accompany the company’s business activities and company
results, and how they are managed:

a) Credit risk

The Company'’s credit risk is defined as the failure to repay funds provided to clients in the agreed amount
and time. The Company is not exposed to any credit risk in its principal activities because foreign currency
transactions are not completed unless the money from the customer has been credited to the Company’s
bank accounts.

The Company is exposed to credit risk in respect of receivables from banks and credit unions, receivables
from non-bank subjects, and other assets.

Determining expected credit loss (ECL)

For the purposes of determining expected credit loss (ECL), the Company divided the items “Receivables from
banks and credit unions” and “Receivables from non-bank subjects and Other assets” based on quantitative
and qualitative criteria to receivables;

« no default and credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition (Stage 1),
« significant credit risk increase since initial recognition (Stage 2),

« in default (Stage 3).

Vypocet ocekavanych avérovych ztrat (ECL):
The expected credit loss (ECL) of the Company is determined using the following formula:
ECL=PD*EAD * LGD

The key inputs and prerequisites for calculating ECL are as follows:

i) probability of default (PD)

Receivables from banks and credit unions

PD for each exposure is established in relation to external credit rating of the counterparty based on data from
Moody's. If the counterparty does not have an external credit rating assigned, an external rating is calculated based
on the rating of the parent company reduced by one rating level. If the parent company does not have an assigned
external credit rating either, an average rating of the remaining banks is used, reduced by two rating levels.

Receivables from non-bank subjects and other assets

Each exposure from receivables from non-bank subjects and other receivables are assigned an external credit
rating based on Moody's data according to quantitative and qualitative criteria.

64

Annual Report | 1Jan 2021 - 31 Dec 2021

ii) exposure at default (EAD)

The gross carrying amount of the exposure as at the date of calculating ECL is used as EAD.

iii) loss given default (LGD)

Loss given defaultis determined based on regulatory values of LGD and Czech National Bank statistics published
as part of the financial stability report.

Classifying receivables into individual levels of impairment

The calculation of ECL for receivables according to individual categories of impairment is as follows:
« impairment Stage 1-12-month ECL
« impairment Stages 2 and 3 - lifetime ECL.

Assets in Stage T:
« financial assets less than 30 days past due

- financial assets for which no qualitative or quantitative factors exist that would indicate that these are
not assets with low counterparty credit risk.

Assets in Stage 2:
» financial assets between 30 and 90 days past due

« financial assets that have experienced a decrease in counterparty credit rating according to Moody's scale
by two or more levels from initial recognition (significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition).

Assets in Stage 3:
» financial assets 90 or more days past due

» financial assets designated on initial recognition as purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets (POCI)

« financial assets whose counterparty has a Moody's credit rating of Caal or worse.

All other receivables as at 31 December 2021 are measured at amortised cost pursuant to IFRS 9.

e et | teweiz | e | o |

12-month Expected credit | Expected credit
expected loss for the term | loss for the term

(thousands CZK) credit loss |for financial assets| for financial
that are not assets that are
credit impaired | credit-impaired

Balance as at 1Jan 2020 67 - - 67

Remeasurement and changes
to models and risk parameters

Balance as at 31 Dec 2020 164 - - 164

Remeasurement and changes
to models and risk parameters

Balance as at 31 Dec 2021 216 166

52 - - 2
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Receivables from non-bank subjects and other assets as at 31 December 2021 are measured at amortised cost
pursuant to IFRS 9.

e et | vz |t | o |

12-month Expected credit | Expected credit
expected loss for the term | loss for the term

(thousands CZK) creditloss |forfinancial assets| for financial
that are not assets that are
credit impaired | credit-impaired

Balance as at1Jan 2020 1,787 - - 1,787

Remeasurement and changes
to models and risk parameters

Balance as at 31 Dec 2020 559 - - 559

Remeasurement and changes
to models and risk parameters

Balance as at 31 Dec 2021 424 424

-1,229 - - -1,229

-134 - - -134

b) Market risk

Market risk is defined as potential gain or loss from movements in asset prices on global markets. Market risk
is managed by prudent and efficient management of open foreign exchange and interest rate positions and
by setting internal limits on the maximum amount of total open foreign exchange and interest rate positions.

¢) Operating risk

Operating risk is defined as the risk of incurring a loss due to inadequacy or failure of internal processes,
the human factor or systems, or the risk of incurring a loss due to external factors. The base for managing
operating risk was created in the Company primarily as a conceptual framework of the organisation structure.
Human factor risk is managed by means of an exact definition of the obligations of the Company’s individual
bodies and employees and the code of organisational rules. Information system-related risk is managed by
means of profiles for accessing information systems and the implementation of control mechanisms. Risk
attributable to the inappropriate or incorrect formulation of internal processes is reduced by implemented
control mechanisms.

The goal of processes for managing operating risk is to implement measures based on observation and
assessment of past events that eliminate or remove the individual operating risk elements. The Company
monitors operating risk in all aspects of its activities where losses can occur because of this risk. The appropriate
management of operating risk also includes the prevention of money laundering and ensuring the security of
Company’s IT systems.

d) Currency risk

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, including off-balance sheet exposures, represent the
Company’s exposure to currency risks.

The management and monitoring of currency risk is performed daily using the value-at-risk method, which is
based on a high-probability estimate of the maximum exchange rate change over a given period.
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Assets as at 31 Dec 2021 Total
(thousands CZK)

Cash in hand and deposits with
central banks

Receivables from banks 266,833 13775 15783 10952 55182 12011 374536
Receivables from non-bank
bjacee 290163 80,670 162 19 142701 964 514079
Ownership interests with
e s 650,114 0 0 0 315000 0 965114
Other 302,344 302,344
Total balance sheet 1,207,137 | 94,445 | 15,945 m 814,659 | 12,975 | 2,156,137
ﬁgﬁgiﬁfﬁsﬁom fixed term 6930209 467008 104448 52783 7971562 150,908 15,676,918

Cotal o3 |sov45a 10353 | 63769 | 878221 163,883 18305

Liabilities as at 31 Dec 2021 Total
(thousands CZK)

Liabilities to banks and credit

unions 228,712 228,712
Payables to non-bank subjects 104,462 93,295 317 2,033 345,622 13,253 561,782
Other 1,365,643 1,365,643
Total balance sheet 333174 mmm 1,711,265 m 2,156,137
Liabilities from fixed term

transactions 7154522 469169 117229 60,890 7624,253 149,396 15,575,459
Pledges and guarantees

received 0 300,000 0 300,000

7,481,696 (562,464 mm 9,635,518 | 162,649 (18,031,596
Net foreign exchange position* mm -849,297 1,234 | -198,541

Assets as at 31 Dec 2020 Total
(thousands CZK)

Cash in hand and deposits with
central banks

Receivables from banks 185,373 4,372 24,468 5,653 35164 5,686 260,716
Rieaelvables il ron-eenke 154492 81330 12169 4545 325012 2380 579,928
subjects

Ownership interests with

T et 650114 0 0 0 315000 0 96574
Other 161,381 161,531
Total balance sheet 990,007 | 85,702 | 36,785 m 836,593 | 8,066 | 1,967,356
Receivables from fixed term

pecavanles 2281010 133850 90,412 0 2526021 67376 5098669

ol | 3amom |zimss | s | 10203 33621 | 75442 1066025
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Liabilities as at 31 Dec 2020 Total
(thousands CZK)

Liabilities to banks and credit

Unions 85,296 85,296

Payables to non-bank subjects 302,644 54491 13,508 3,646 204,540 6,514 585,343
Other 1,296,354 1,296,717

Total balance sheet 388,262 | 54,491 | 13,549 | 3,646 1,500,894 m 1,967,356

Liabilities from fixed tern

transactions 2,229,637 166,242 113,927 5838 2500923 67375 5,083,942

2,617,899 |220,733 | 127,476 | 9,484 | 4,001,817 | 73,889 |7,051,298

The net foreign exchange position for EUR/CZK flows primarily from investments into subsidiaries which are
remeasured in CZK as at the date of acquiring the investment. The Company does not currently perform any
hedging of this open position.

e) Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk as its interest-bearing assets and liabilities have different
maturity dates, interest rate adjustment periods and volumes during these periods.

Assets as at 31 Dec 2021 From 3 mon-| From 1year| More than Total
(thousands CZK) thsto1year| to 5 years 5years
Cash in hand and deposits with CB

Receivables from banks 225,376 0 0 0 225,376
Other assets and prepaid expenses 60,359 91,001 58,759 0 210,119

Total 285,799 91,001 58,759 0 435,559

Liabilities as at 31 Dec 2021 From 3 mon-| From 1year| More than Total
(thousands CZK) thsto1year| to5years 5 years

Liabilities to banks 228,712 228,712
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 40,588 58,023 4,523 103134

T T R T
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Assets as at 31 Dec 2020 From 3 mon-|From 1year| More than Total
(thousands CZK) thstolyear| to5years 5years
Cash in hand and deposits with CB

Receivables from banks 260,716 0 0 0 260,716
Other assets and prepaid expenses 22,508 35177 6,712 64,397

N R T

Liabilities as at 31 Dec 2021 From 3 mon-|From 1year| More than Total
(thousands CZK) thstolyear| to5years 5years

Liabilities to banks 85,296 85,296
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 20,624 23,861 4,077 48,562

T B T

_m-lm
| Cmulativegap | 262667 | 188,687 | 191322 | 191322 | 191322

The above summary includes only interest-sensitive assets and liabilities, and the figures are therefore not the
same as those presented in the balance sheet.

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk at several levels:
Cost of foreign capital

The Company funds short-term liquidity using loans from banks. The cost of these loans is directly related to
the interest rates currently applicable to the currencies in which they are provided and an increase in these
rates has a negative impact on the Company’s P&L.

Interest differential

The Company has limited exposure to interest rate risk arising from the Forward+ product. This product derived
from the standard FWD product allows clients the flexibility to settle these trades over a pre-agreed period.
However, this type of FWD is not offered to all clients and accounts for less than half of all FWD trades. Moreover,
the probability of losses is also low, given that this product is mainly used by exporters to hedge foreign currency
sales. This fact creates an interest rate position for the company that is positively affected by the difference
between interest rates in the Czech Republic and those in the Eurozone (referred to as interest rate differential).
Both the CNB and the ECB assure the markets that this situation will continue for at least the next 12 months.

f) Liquidity risk

The Company's liquidity is defined as the ability to duly and in time fulfil customer obligations arisen on foreign
exchange conversions and related payment transactions.

The Company has mechanisms in place to separate the clients' financial means from the Company's operating funds.

Executed foreign currency transactions are settled after obtaining the financial coverage from the client. This
mechanism prevents exposure to liquidity risk.
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The table below contains assets and liabilities sorted according to their remaining maturity. This is the period
from the balance sheet date until the date a relevant asset or liability is contractually payable.

Undis- From3 From1 More

I-:‘sets as:t :123& Aoy 2?1:;{::? counted months | yearto than5

(thousands CZK) cash flows tolyear | 5years | years
0 0

Cash in hand and deposits with CB 0
Receivables from banks 225376 225376 225,376 0 0 0
Receivables from non-bank subjects 514,079 514,079 514,079 0 0 0
Other assets and prepaid expenses 271,636 271,636 78,572 134,305 58,759 0

Sota|voniss [1owsss | eim0% | 134305 | se7n| o

NP, . Undis- From 3 From1 More
Lt':b"'t'es das 3;31 Dec2021 ca?";;‘ﬂ:g counted months | yearto than5
(thousands ) cash flows tolyear | 5years | years

0 0

Liabilities to banks 228,712 235,379 0 228712
Payables to non-bank subjects 561,782 561,782 561,782 0 0 0
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 132526 132,526 69,969 58,033 4,524

N T e A N

Net liquidity risk y 186,340 |-152,440

(thousands CZK) amount | -ch flows tolyear | S5years | years
Cash on hand and deposits with CB 0 0 0
Receivables from banks 260,716 260,716 260,716 0 0 0
Receivables from non-bank entities 579928 579928 542,743 37185 0 0
Other assets and accrued expenses 134,752 134,752 22,508 105,532 6,71 0
ol | o7suea | 97543 | a2603 | w2ri| 67| O
e, [wons | £ oy
(thousands CZK) amount | -ch flows tolyear | S5years | years
Liabilities to banks 85,296 87,783 0 87783 0 0
Liabilities to non-bank entities 585,343 585343 572,679 12,664 0 0
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 64,309 64,309 36,371 23,861 4,077
B s s omom L akses | bor| o
Netliguidityrisk | 200515 | 238,028 | 216984 | 18,409 | 263 | 0.

The above includes only assets and liabilities that are contractually payable; as a result, the balances differ from
those presented in the Company’s balance sheet.
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g) Counterparty default risk

Counterparty default risk is defined as the possibility of loss or gain from failure to meet the obligations of clients
with whom a contractual relationship has been concluded. The Company is exposed to counterparty default risk
in its business, particularly in FWD transactions. This risk is higher for trades negotiated without collateral. The
conclusion of such a FWD transaction is conditional on an internal assessment of the creditworthiness of the
new client, which is based on an analysis of financial and non-financial indicators, and the regular assessment
of the creditworthiness of existing clients. Clients who are not assessed as eligible to trade without collateral
are required to post collateral in the form of cash transferred to the Company’s account. The sufficiency of this
collateral is monitored on an ongoing basis considering potential losses on open positions and, if necessary, the
client is required to increase the collateral to a sufficient level.

C.25 Fair value

Valuation methods

Valuation methods include:
« netcurrent value and models based on discounted cash flows
« comparison to similar instruments with comparable prices

« othervaluation models.

Inputs and techniques
Inputs and technigues used in valuation methods include:
« risk-free interest rates
« exchange rates
« reference interest rates
» swap rates

e counterparty credit risk

Goal of valuation method

The goal of the valuation method is to determine a fair value that reflects the price obtained from sale of the
asset or paid upon receipt of the asset as part of a proper transaction between market participants as at the
date of valuation.

Reviews and inspections

The accounting entity has set up a system of controls for measuring fair value. The given controls include the following:
« evaluating comparable inputs and prices
« recalculating based on models

« checking and approving processes for new valuation models and changes in them.
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Financial instruments not reported at fair value on the balance sheet

The following table reports the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities not
recognised at fair value on the balance sheet:

Assets as at 31 Dec 2021 Carrying amount
(thousands CZK) i

Cash in hand and deposits with CB 64 64
Receivables from banks 374,588 374,588
Receivables from non-bank subjects 514,079 514,079
Other assets and prepaid expenses 51,459 51,459

Liabilities as at 31 Dec 2021 P ——
(thousands CZK) ying

Liabilities to banks 228,712 228,712
Payables to non-bank subjects 561,782 561,782
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 27416 27416

Assets as at 31 Dec 2020 P —
(thousands CZK) ying

Cash in hand and deposits with CB 67 67
Receivables from banks 260,716 260,716
Receivables from non-bank subjects 579,928 579,928
Other assets and prepaid expenses 69,892 69,892

Total 910,603 910,603

Liabilities as at 31 Dec 2020 Carrying amount
(thousands CZK) ying

Liabilities to banks 85,296 85,296
Payables to non-bank subjects 585,343 585,343
Other liabilities and accrued expenses 15,748 15,748

Total 686,387 686,387

Financial instruments reported at fair value on the balance sheet

As at 31 Dec 2021 Level Level Total Total
(thousands CZK) RH 2 RH3 fair value carrying amount

Other assets - positive value of derivatives 0 158,826 51,373 210,019 210,119
Other liabilities - negative value of derivatives 0 52400 50,816 103,216 103,216
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As at 31 Dec 2020 Level Level Level Total Total
(thousands CZK) RH1 RH 2 RH3 fair value carrying amount

Other assets - positive value of derivatives 0 64397 64,379 64,397
Other liabilities - negative value of derivatives 0 48562 0 48,562 48,562

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances in level 3:

As at 31 Dec 2021 Positive Negative

h ds CZK fair value of fair value of
(thousands CZK) derivatives derivatives
Zistatek k1. 1. 2021 0 0 0
Nakupy 51373 -50 816 557
Zustatek k 31.12. 2021 51373 -50 816 557

The accounting entity uses the following inputs and technigues to estimate fair value:

Cash in hand and deposits with CB

Carrying amount equal to fair value. These financial assets are categorised at Level 1in the fair value hierarchy.

Receivables from banks

Due to the short maturity of these receivables, the carrying amount approximates their fair value. These
financial assets are ranked at Level Tin the hierarchy of fair values.

Receivables from non-bank subjects

The estimated fair value of credits is based on discounted expected cash flows, using an interest rate valid for
credits connected with similar credit risk, interest rate risk, and similar maturity. Due to the short maturity of
these receivables, the carrying amount approximates their fair value.

These financial assets are ranked at level 2 in the hierarchy of fair values.

Liabilities to banks

Due to the short maturity of these liabilities, the carrying amount approximates their fair value. These financial
liabilities are categorised at Level 1in the fair value hierarchy.

Payables to non-bank subjects

Payables to clients payable upon demand primarily represent payables to clients for unsettled spot trades. Due
to the short maturity of these payables, the carrying amount is equal to their real value.

These financial liabilities are categorised at Level 2 in the hierarchy of fair values.
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Other assets]liabilities

The Company measures financial derivatives at fair value. The fair value of financial derivatives is determined as
the current value of expected cash flows arising from these transactions. Parameters determined on the active
market are used to establish the net present value, such as forex rates, interest rates for the given maturities
based on yield curves etc.

The Company also enters into derivative transactions that can be settled in tranches over time. The fair value of
these derivatives is determined as the sum of the option and forward components. The valuation of the forward
component is based on the traditional valuation of a forward contract. To calculate the option component,
a random path simulation of the FX rate is performed for each day from the valuation date until the maturity
date of the derivative. The sum of the fair value of the two components comprises the total fair value of the
derivative; this value is shown on the balance sheet, with positive fair values in “Other assets,” and negative fair
values in “Other liabilities”.

These financial assets are categorised at Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy.

For other assets and liabilities, the carrying amount is equal to their fair value.

C.26. Material events

COVID-19 pandemic

The coronavirus pandemic continues to have a significant impact on all current events and affects the Czech and
global economic outlook. The measures taken to stop the coronavirus pandemic have had a negative impact on
foreign trade and the production and consumption behaviour of economic entities. The dynamic development
of the situation entails a high degree of uncertainty in the creation and update of projections.

Measures taken by companies

In the wake of the extensive spread of the disease, the Company has taken preventive measures to protect its
employees and clients by increasing the use of remote work for employees; it continued the regular testing of
its employees, it has recommended that contact with its clients primarily take place electronically, and it has
increased hygiene standards in the workplace. However, the Company's operations and service delivery have
not been significantly adversely affected by these measures.

Anticipated impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Company

Management is continuously assessing the potential impact of the pandemic on the Company’s operations.
With regard to the results achieved in 2021, it can be stated that the pandemic has not had a negative impact
on the Company and its operations; on the contrary, the Company has achieved its highest profit ever and
exchange rate fluctuations have had a positive effect on its operations. In view of the above, and given the
nature of the services it provides, no negative impact on the Company’s operations and financial results is
expected in 2022. Based on the current trends of the COVID-19 pandemic, there is no threat to the Company’s
operations in the upcoming period in terms of capital, liquidity, management, or other factors.

Thanks to regular capital increases in previous years, the Company has sufficient capital for any possible
negative development in 2022. The Company does not expect any significant impacts on capital that could
jeopardise its operations even in the event of a negative trend during 2022.

The Company keeps a large percentage of its assets as liquid due to the nature of the services it provides, while
at the same time availing of funding sources that it can adapt relatively flexibly to its needs according to market
developments. Thus, its liquidity position is not threatened by negative stress scenarios.

Based on all information available to the management of the Company as at the date of these financial
statements, the situation described above does not jeopardise the assumption of the Company as a going
concern, which serves as the basis on which these financial statements and the semi-annual report have
been prepared. In the current situation, it cannot be ruled out that certain restrictions may be tightened or
reintroduced, or that existing measures may be tightened further, with an ensuing negative impact of such
measures on the economic environment in which the Company operates or on the Company itself, its financial
condition, and its performance, both in the medium and long term. The Company’s management is monitoring
developments and is prepared to take appropriate measures to respond to current developments as needed.
Considering the results achieved in 2021, and the positive trend of the Company's performance to date, it can
be stated that the pandemic has not had a negative impact on the Company; on the contrary, the company has
achieved its highest profit ever and the fluctuation of the exchange rate due to the general uncertainty of the
development is a positive factor for its performance.

C.27. Significant events as at the date of the financial statements

Changes to the board of directors of the Company

On 2 Feb 2022, Ing. Martin Farsky resigned from his position as a member of the board of directors of the
Company. Ing. Ondrej Korecky, born on 20 May 1986 and residing in Zlin at Losky 2631 760 01, was newly
appointed to the board of directors as at 3 February 2022, at which time he was also elected chairman of the
board of directors at the meeting of the board of directors.

C.28. Declaration of persons with managing authority

We solemnly declare that to the best of our knowledge this annual report gives a true and fair view of the
financial position, business activities, and results of the operations of SAB Finance a.s. for 2021.

In Prague on 23 Feb 2022

JM ‘Mol

Ing. Ondrej Korecky, FCCA Ing. Dana Hubnerova Ing. Petr Cumba
Chairman of the Member of the Member of the
board of directors board of directors board of directors
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